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CONTENTSVISION
Working together to achieve healthier 

communities.

MISSION
In collaboration with the Community, GV 
Health will continually strive to improve 
the quality of integrated services that 

achieve the best possible individual and 
community health outcomes. 

STATEMENT OF 
VALUES

Goulburn Valley Health is committed to:
• Person Centred Care;

• Integrated and effective services and 
facilities;

• Improving Quality and Safety;
• Caring, Competent & Empowered 

workforce;
• Responding to diversity;
• Financial responsibility;

• Equity of access;
• Consumer and community 

engagement.
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DISCLOSURE INDEX 
 
The annual report of Goulburn Valley Health is prepared in accordance with all relevant 

Victorian legislation. This index has been prepared to facilitate identification of the 

Department's compliance with statutory disclosure requirements.  
 
 
Legislation Requirement       Page/Note Reference 
 
 
Ministerial Directions 
 
Report of Operations 
 
Charter and purpose 
FRD 22B Manner of establishment and the relevant Ministers Report of Operations 
FRD 22B Objectives, functions, powers and duties Report of Operations 
FRD 22B Nature and range of services provided Report of Operations 
 
Management and structure  
FRD 22B  Organisational structure  Report of Operations 
 
Financial and other information  
FRD 10 Disclosure Index Report of Operations 
FRD 11 Disclosure of ex-gratia payments Appendix 3 note 22 
FRD 21A Responsible person and executive officer disclosures  Appendix 3 note 20 
FRD 22B  Application and operation of Freedom of Information Act 1982  Report of Operations 
FRD 22B  Application and operation of Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001   Report of Operations 
FRD 22B  Compliance with building and maintenance provisions of  
 Building Act 1993  Report of Operations 
FRD 22B  Details of consultancies over $100,000  Report of Operations 
FRD 22B  Details of consultancies under $100,000  Report of Operations 
FRD 22B  Major changes or factors affecting performance  Page 5 
FRD 22B  Occupational health and safety  Report of Operations 
FRD 22B  Operational and budgetary objectives  
 and performance against objectives  Page 5 
FRD 22B  Significant changes in financial position during the year  Page 5 
FRD 22B  Statement of availability of other information  Report of Operations 
FRD 22B  Statement of merit and equity  Report of Operations 
FRD 22B  Statement on National Competition Policy  Report of Operations 
FRD 22B  Subsequent events  Page 5 
FRD 22B  Summary of the financial results for the year  Page 4 
FRD 22B  Workforce Data Disclosures   Report of Operations 
FRD 25  Victorian Industry Participation Policy disclosures  Report of Operations 
SD 4.2(j)  Report of Operations, Responsible Body Declaration  Appendix 2 
SD 4.5.5  Attestation on Compliance with Australian/ 
 New Zealand Risk Management Standard  Report of Operations 
 
Financial Statements  
 
Financial statements required under Part 7 of the FMA  
 
SD 4.2(a)  Compliance with Australian accounting standards  
 and other authoritative pronouncements  Appendix 3 note 1a 
SD 4.2(b)  Comprehensive Operating Statement  Appendix 3 
SD 4.2(b) Balance Sheet  Appendix 3 
SD 4.2(b)  Statement of Changes in Equity  Appendix 3 
SD 4.2(b)  Cash Flow Statement  Appendix 3 
SD 4.2(c)  Accountable officer’s declaration  Appendix 2 
SD 4.2(c)  Compliance with Ministerial Directions Appendix 3 note 1a 
SD 4.2(d) Rounding of amounts Appendix 3 note 1d 
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Legislation Requirement       Page/Note Reference 
 
 
Legislation 
 
Freedom of Information Act 1982  Report of Operations 
Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001  Report of Operations 
Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003 Report of Operations 
Building Act 1993 Report of Operations 
Financial Management Act 1994  Report of Operations 
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE YEAR  
 
 2009-10 2009-08 2008-07 2007-06 2006-05 
 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Total Revenue 170,268
 

157,868 
 

153,321  
 

132,114 
 

116,582 

Total Expenses 178,215
 

161,045 
 

143,927  
 

130,626 
 

117,087 

Operating Profit/(Deficit) (7,947)
 

(3,177)
  

9,394  
 

1,488 
 

(505)
  

Total Assets 130,795
 

140,894 
 

110,871  
 

94,774 
 

85,297 

Total Liabilities 41,296
 

43,448 
  

36,120  
 

28,743 
 

24,058 

Net Assets 89,499
 

97,446 
  

74,751  
 

66,031 
 

61,239 
  
Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation 
Reserve 46,346

 
46,346 

  
21,760  

 
22,052 

 
22,052 

Available-For-Sale Revaluation Reserve - - 
  

(1,286) - - 

General Purpose Reserve 17,962
 

16,892 
  

15,385  
 

14,179 
 

13,296 

Restricted Purpose Reserve 5,256
 

5,256 
  

4,326  
 

2,888 
 

2,119 

Contributed Capital 46,821
 

46,821 
  

46,821  
 

45,929 
 

42,625 

Accumulated Deficits (26,886)
 

(17,869)
  

(12,255) 
 

(19,017)
 

(18,853)

Total Equity 89,499
 

97,446 
  

74,751  
 

66,031 
 

61,239 
      

 
 

Revenue Indicators 
Average Days to 

Collect 
  2009/10 2008/09 

Private Inpatients 
 

95.52 
  

87.69  

Transport Accident Commission 
 

233.75 
  

117.81  

Victorian Workcover Authority 
 

118.06 
  

96.78  

All Other Patient Fees 
 

141.45 
  

96.07  
Residential Aged Care (Exl. Commonwealth 
Benefits) 

 
33.28 

  
43.73  
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Debtors Outstanding 
30th June 2010 

 Under  
30 Days 

 31-60 
Days 

 61-90 
Days 

 Over 
90 Days 

 Total 
30/06/2010  

 Total 
30/06/2009 

Private Inpatients 
 

389,455 
 

109,952 
 

44,969 
 

272,465      816,842       775,544 

Transport Accident 
Commission 

 
68,754 

 
19,411 

 
7,939 

 
48,101      144,205         92,348 

Victorian Workcover 
Authority 

 
95,494 

 
26,960 

 
11,026 

 
66,808      200,288       113,986 

All Other Patient Fees 
 

149,703 
 

42,265 
 

17,286 
 

104,733      313,986       318,634 
Residential Aged Care 
(Exl. Commonwealth 
Benefits) 

 
14,298 

 
10,976 

 
6,043            -        31,317       147,080 

 
 

717,704 
 

209,564 
 

87,263 
 

492,107   1,506,638  
 

1,447,592 
 
SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN FINANCIAL POSITION 
The cash assets of GV Health have decreased this financial year. Our operating grant cashflows from DH 
were not significantly higher than the previous year. This is due in part to the fact that we were cashflowed 
an excess in the previous financial year for which adjustment was made. This also impacted our payables 
liability as GV Health accrued to pay the excess cash back in the prior financial year. Employee 
entitlements payments were also higher, given the growing nature of our organisation, and the 
employment of more medical staff rather than contracting services in.  
 
GV Health continues to struggle to reduce its amount of employee leave liabilities, a problem faced by 
many rural health service providers caused by difficulties in attracting replacement clinical and other 
professional staff. In addition to this, GV Health reviewed its Long Service Leave probability factors during 
the year which increased employee entitlements by in excess of $1 million dollars, the majority of this 
amount being able to be taken up in the receivables amount as a DH debtor.  
 
Equity has decreased during the year by the entity result for 2009-2010 of $7.947m deficit, which 
compares to the $3.177m deficit recorded during 2008-2009. 
 
OPERATIONAL & BUDGETARY OBJECTIVES & FACTORS AFFECTING PERFORMANCE 
GV Health is a Public Health Service and is required to negotiate a Statement of Priorities with DH each 
year. This document is a key accountability agreement between GV Health and the Minister for Health and 
recognises that resources are limited and that the allocation 
of these scarce resources needs to be prioritised. The Statement incorporates both system-wide priorities 
set by Government and locally generated agency specific priorities. 
 
The Board budgeted for a break even financial position before capital items and depreciation for the 2009-
2010 year. The final result for the year was a deficit of $0.466m before capital items and depreciation, 
$0.466m worse than anticipated. Major factors contributing to this result included an increased 
requirement from the Government for productivity and efficiency savings ($0.8m reduction in grant 
revenue), a failure to meet sub-acute inpatient targets due in part to being unable to attract a permanent 
Geriatrician ($1.2m grant recall), and changes to organisational Long Service Leave probability factors 
($0.2m net adjustment).  
 
This organisation and DH both focus on the result before capital and depreciation, as depreciation is not a 
funded item. Funding for capital redevelopment and major equipment 
purchases are sourced from DH and such funding is allocated according to need and after consideration of 
a supporting submission. 
 
The Board of Directors again allocated funds from prior year surpluses to the purchase of equipment and 
minor improvements to facilities. The current year result is of concern as it is recognised that a surplus 
result equivalent to 2% of operating revenue is required to maintain a viable cash position and to allow the 
organisation to fund the replacement of medical and other equipment.  
 
EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE 
There have been no events subsequent to balance date that will have a significant effect on the operations 
of the health service in subsequent years. 



Auditing in the Public In teres t

VAGO
Victorian Auditor-General's Office

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR 'S REPORT

To the Board Members , Goulburn Valley Health

The Financial Report
The accompanying financ ial repo rt for the ye ar ended 30 June 2010 of G ou lburn Valley Health which
comprises the comprehens ive operating statement , bala nce sheet, sta tement of changes in equity, cash
flow stat ement, a summa ry of s ignificant accounting polici es a nd other explanatory notes to and forming
part o f t h e fi nancia l report, and the boar d member ' s , accountable offi cer's a nd chief finance & accounting
offi cer's declaratio n, has been audited .

The Board Members' Responsibility for the Financial Report
The board members of Goulburn Va lley Hea lth are respons i ble for the preparation and fair presentation of
the f inancial report in ac cordance wi th Austral ian Account ing Standards , i nc l uding the Aust ralian
Accoun ting Interpretations, and the financ i al reporting requirements of the Financial Management Act
1994 . This responsibili ty inc ludes :

• establ i shing and main ta in i ng inte rnal contro l s relevant to the preparat ion a nd fa i r presentation of the
financ i al report th at i s free from mate r ial m isstatement , wheth er due to fraud or er ror

• selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies
• making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances .

Auditor's Responsibility
As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based
on the audit, which has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards . These
Standards require compliance with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and that
the audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free
from material misstatement .

An audit involves pe rfo rming procedures to obta in aud i t evidence abo ut the amounts a nd d i sclosures i n
the financial report . The audit proced ures selected depend on judgement , i n clud ing the assessme nt of the '
r i sks of materi al misstatement of the financia l repor t, whethe r d ue to fraud or error . In making those risk
assessments , considera t ion is given to th e inte rnal control re levant to the enti ty's preparation and fa i r
presentat ion of the financia l repor t in order to design aud it procedures that are appropr i ate in the
ci rcumstances , bu t not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiven ess of t he entity ' s
internal c o nt rol . An audit a l so includes evaluating the appropr iateness of the ac cou nting po li cies used, and
the reasonableness of accounting est imates made by the board members , as well as evaluat ing the
overa l l presentatio n of the f inanc ial report .

believe that the aud i t evidence I have obtained is suff i c ient and approp r iate to prov ide a basis fo r my
audit opinion .

Level 24, 35 Col l ins St reet, Melbou r ne Vic . 3000
Telephone 6 1 3 8601 7000 Facsimile 61 3 8601 7010 Email comments@aud i t.v ic.gov.au Webs i te wvvw.aud it .vic.gov.au



Auditor's Opinion
In my op inion , the fina nc ia l repor t presents fai r ly, in all mater ial respects , the financial position of Gou lburn
Va l l ey Health as a t 30 June 2010 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year t hen ended in
accordance with app li cable Australian Accounting Standards , including the Austral ian Account ing
Interpreta t ions , and the fina ncia l report ing requ irements of the Financial Management Act 1994 .

D D R Pearson
~~ Auditor-General

MELBOURNE
26 Aug us t 2010

Auditing in the Public In teres t

VAGO
Victorian Auditor-General's Office

Independent Auditor 's Report (continued)

Matters Relating to the Electronic Presentation of the Audited Financial Report
This aud itor's report relates to th e financial report publis h ed in both the a nnual repo rt and on the website
of Gou lburn Valley Health fo r the year ended 30 June 2010 . The board membe rs of the health serv ice are
responsib l e for the integr i ty of th e web s i te . I have not been engaged to report on the int egrity of the web
site. The aud i tor ' s repor t r e f ers only to the statemen ts named above . An opin ion is not provided on any
other information which may h ave been hype r li nked to or from thes e statements . I f users of this report are
concerned with th e inherent risks arising from elect ronic data communic ations , they are advised to refer to
the hard copy of t he a udited financ ia l rep o rt to conf irm the info rmatio n includ ed in the audited financia l
r eport presented on the heal th service's web site .

Independence
The Auditor -General' s independence is esta blished by the Constitution Act 1975 . The Auditor-General i s
not subj ect to d irec tion by any person about the way in w hich his p owers and responsib il ities a re to be
exercised . In conducting the audit , the Audito r-Genera l , his staff and deleg ates complied with a l l
appl icable independence requirements of the Aust ra lian accounting profession .

Leve l 24, 35 Co l lins St ree t , Me lbou rne Vic . 3000
Te lephone 61 3 8601 7000 Facsimile 61 3 8601 701 0 Email com ments@audi t .v ic .gov.au Webs ite www.audi t .vic . gov.au



Shepparton Shepparton Shepparton
25'h August 2010 25 1" August 2010 25th August 2010

Goulburn Valley Health
Board Member 's, Accountable
Officer's and Chief Finance &

Accounting Officer's Declaration

We certify tha t the attached fi n ancia l stateme n ts for

Go ulbu rn Va lley Health have bee n prepa red in accordance

with Standin g Di rect i on 4 . 2 of th e Financial Management
A ct 1994 , ap plicable Financial Reporting Directions,

Austra l ia n Accounting Standards, Aus tra lian Acco unting
Inte rp re ta tions and othe r man datory professiona l reporting

requi rem ents .

We fur ther sta te that, in ou r opinion , the inform ation set

out in the Comprehensive Operat i ng Statement , Ba lance

Sheet , Statement of Changes in Equ ity, Cash Flow

Statem ent and notes to and forming pa r t of the f i nancial
s tatements, presents fa irly the financial transactions during
the year ended 30 Ju ne 2010 and the fi nanc i al posit i on of
Goulbu rn Valley Hea l th a t 3 0 June 2010 .

We are not aware of any circumstance which would render

any particulars included in the financial statements to be

misleading or inaccurate .

We authorise t he at tach ed financ ial sta tements for Issue on
this day .

Ch arl~~mens F'~+1-phy Kerrynre t Healy Shaun Andrew Eldridge
Board Chai r Accounta b l e Offi cer Chief Fina n ce & Account ing

Offi cer



Note

2
14a
3
4
3

Comprehensive Result For The Year (7,947) 22,695

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

Goulburn Valley Health
Comprehens ive Operating State m ent

for the Y ear Ended 30 June 2010

Revenue From Operating Activities
Revenue From Non-Operating Activities
Employee Benefits
Non Salary Labour Costs
Supplies and Consumables
Other Expenses From Continuing Operations
Net Result Before Capital & Specific Items

Capital Purpose Income
Available-for-Sale Revaluation Reserve Loss Recognised
Impairment of Financ i al Asse ts
Depreciation
Expenditure Us ing Cap ital Purpose Income
Net Result fo r the Yea r

Other Comprehens i ve Income
Net Fair Value Gains On Avai lab l e For Sa l e Financial Instuments
Net Fair Va lue Reva luation on Non Financia l Assets

2
2
3
3
3
3

Total Total
2010 2009

167,371 153,357
936 1,613

(112,o2 8) (1oo,o53 )
(10,012) (10,298)
(24,618) (20,878)
(22,115) (21,857)
(466) 1,884

1,961 2,898
- (1,286)

(1,168)
(9,274) (5,459)
(168) (46)

(7,947) (3,177)

1,286
24,586



Goulburn Valley Health
Balance Sheet

As At 30 June 2010
Note Total Total

2010 2009
$1000 $'000

5
6
7
8
9

1,441 11,385
4,687 4,140
10,500 9,362
1,595 1,422
1,035 543

19,258 26,852

11 10,838 15,315
12 20,344 18,973
13 5,471 5,943

36,653 40,231

EQUITY
Property, Plant and Equipment Reva l uation Surp lus
Genera l Purpose Reserve
Restricted Specific Pu rpose Reserve
Contributed Capital
Accumu lated Deficits
TOTAL EQU ITY

Contingent Asse ts and Contingent Liabilities
Commitments for Expenditure

46,346 46,346
17,962 16,892
5,256 5,256
46,821 46,821
(26,886) (17,869)
89,499 97,446

21
17

This statement should b e read in conjunct ion w ith the accompanying notes

Current Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Rece ivables
Other Finan cial Assets
Inventories
Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

Non Current Asset s
Receivables
Other Financ i al Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment
Total Non Cur rent Asset s

TOTAL ASSETS

Current Liabilities
Payables
Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs Provisions
Other Liabilities
Total Cu rrent L iab i l it i es

Non Current Liabilities
Employee Benefits and Re lated On -Cos t s P rovisions
Total Non Curr e nt Liabil i ties

TOTAL LIAB ILITIES

NET ASSETS

6 1,989 1,027
7 846 846
10 108,702 112,169

111,537 114,042

130,795 140,894

12

14a
14a
14a
14b
14c

4,643 3,217
4,643 3,217

41,296 43,448

89,499 97,446



Equity
Equi ty at Comprehensive at

1 July 2009 Result 30 June 2010
2010 Note 51000 S1000 $1000

1 4b 46,821 - 46,821

97,446 (7,947) 89,499

Equity Equity
at Comprehensive a t

1 Ju ly 2008 Result 30 June 2009

46,821 - 46 ,82 114b

74,75 1 2 2,695 97,446To tal Equity at the End of the Financ i a l Year

This Stateme n t shoul d be read i n conjunction with the acco mpanying note s .

Goulburn Valley Health
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2010

Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit)
Transfe r (To)/ From Genera l Reserve

Contr ibutio n by Owners

Reserves
Property, Plant and Equipment Revaluation Surplus
Gene ral Reserve
Restric te d Specific Purpose Reserve

Total Equity a t the End o f th e Financia l Y ea r

Restated Accumulated Surplus
Transfer (To)/From General Reserve
Tra ns fer (To)/From Specifi c Purpose Reserve

Con t ri bu ti on by Owne rs

Reserves
Property, Plant and Equipment Revaluation Surplus
Available for Sale Investments Reval uat ion Reserve
General Reserve
Restricted Specific Purpose Reserve

(17 , 869) (7,947) (25,816)
(1,070) (1,070)

(17,869) (9,017) (26,886)

1 4a 46,346 - 46,346
14a 16,892 1,070 17,962
14a 5,256 5,256

68 , 494 1,070 69,564

No t e

(72 ,266) (3,177) (1 5,432)
(1,507) (1,507)
(930) (930)

(12, 255) (5,614) (1 7,869)

14a 21,760 24,586 46,346
14a (1,286) 1,286 -
14a 15, 385 1,507 16,892
14a 4, 326 930 5,256

40, 185 28,309 68,494



Cash Flows from Opera ting Activities
Operating Grants from Government
Patient and Resident Fees Received
Diagnostic Patient Fees Received
Private Practice Fees Received
Donations Received
Interest Received
Other Receipts
Employee Benefits Paid
Non Salary Labour Costs
Payments for Supplies, Consumables and Services
GST Received from/(Paid to) ATO
Cash Generated from Operations

136,772 135,274
5,692 4,395
8,861 8,155
1,142 659
370 91
940 1,606

10,028 9,126
(109,231) (98,375)
(10,012) (10,297)
(52,941) (48,070)
4,387 4,395
(3,992) 6,959

Net lncrease/(Decrease) in Cash Held
Cash & Cash Equiva lents at Beginn ing of Pe riod
Cash & Cash Equivalents at End of Period

(3 ,877) 1,469
4,979 3,510

5 1,102 4,979

Th is statement shou ld be rea d in con junction with the accompanying notes

Goulburn Valley Health
Cash Flow Statement

For the Year Ended 30 June 2010

Note Total Total
2010 2009

Cap ita l Grants from Governmen t
Cap ital Donations Received
Other Capital Receipts
Expenditu re Using Capi ta l Purpose Income
Net Cas h Inflow from Operating Activ i t i e s

Cash Flows from Invest i ng Act ivi ties
Payments for Non Financial Assets
Proceeds from Sale of Non Financial Assets
Purchase of Investments
P roceeds from Sale of Investments
N et Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from investing Activ i t ie s

1,002 1,412
42 842
740 901

(168) (46)
15 (2 ,376) 10,068

(6,102) (9,497)
268 560
- 338

(1,501) (8,599)



The financial statements are prepa red in accord ance w i th the h i storica l cost
convent i on, except for the reva l uat ion of certa i n non-financial assets and
financial Instruments, as noted . Pa rt icu larly , exceptions to the h isto rical cost
convention include :

Goulburn Valley Hea l th
Notes t o t he Financial Statements

30 June 2010

Note 1 : Statement of S ign ificant Accounting
Policies
a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements are a ge nera l purpose fin a ncia l r e port which have
been prepared in acco rdance with the F i nancial Manageme nt Act 1994 and
applicable Austral i an Accounti ng Standa rds (AASs) and Austra lian Account ing
Inte rpretations and ot her mandatory requirem ents . AASs include Austra lian
eq uival ents to International F inancia l Reporting Standards .

The financial statements also comply with relevant Financial Reporting
Directions (FRDS) issued by the Department of Treasury and Finance, and
relevant Standing Directions (SDs) authorised by the Minister for Finance .

The Hea lth Service is a no t-for profit entity an d therefore applies the
addit ional Au s paragraphs app li cable to "not-for-profit" Hea lth S ervices u nder
the AAS's .

b) Basis of accounting preparation and measurement
Th e accounting po l i c i es set out below have been app lied in p reparing the
f inancial statem ents for the year ended 30 June 2010, and the comparat ive
i nformation presented in these financ ial statements fo r the year ended 30
June 2009 .

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that
the resulting financial Information satisfies the concepts of relevance and
reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions
or other events is reported .

Th e going con cern basis was used to prepare the financ i al sta tem ents .
Goulburn Va l ley Health has secured a l etter o f comfort from the Department
of Health dated 13th August 2010 , wh ich deta i ls that they wi l l provide
adequate cash flow support to enable the Health Se rvice to meet its current
and futur e ob l igat ions as and when they fa ll due for a period up to
September 2011, shou ld it be req uired .

The financ i a l statements, except fo r cash f low informat ion , have been
prepared using the accrua l basis of account ing . Under the accrua l basis,
It e ms are recognised as assets, liab il ities , eq uity, Income or expenses when
they sat isfy the defin itions and recogn ition criteria fo r those items, that is
they are recognised fn the reporting period to which they relate , regardless
of when ca sh is rece ived or paid .



Figures (n the f inanc ia l sta tements may not be equa l du e to round ing .

Goulbum Vall ey Heal th
Notes to the Financial Statements

30 June 2010

• Non-current physical assets , wh ich subsequent to acqu isition, are
measured at valuation and are re-assessed w ith su fficient r egulari ty
to ensure that the carrying amo u nts do not mater i a lly d i ffe r f rom thei r
fair va lues;
and
Available -for-sa le investments which are measured a t fa ir value with
movements reflected in equ ity until the asse t is derecognised .

H isto rica l Cost is based on the fair values of th e cons ideration g ive n in
exchange for assets .

Cost is based o n the fair values of the considerat ion given in exchang e fo r
assets .

In the appl icat ion of AASs management is req uired to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about car ry ing va lues of assets and l i abil i ties that
are not read ily appare nt from other sources . The estimates and associated
assumptions a re based on h istorical experi ence and various other facto rs
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstanc es , the results of
wh ich form the basis of making th e judgments. Actual res ults may differ
from these estimates .

The estimates and underlying assumptions a re rev i ewed on an ongoing
bas is . Revis ion s to accounting estimates a re recognised i n the per iod in
which the estim ate is revised if the revision affects on ly that period or in the
period of the revision , and future periods if the revis ion affects both current
and future periods .

c) Reporting Entity
The financial report includes al l the controlled act iv ities of Goulburn Valley
Health .

Its prin cip le address is :
Graham Street
Shepparton
Victoria 3630

d) Rounding Of Amounts
All amounts shown in the financ ial statements are expressed to the nearest
$1 ,000 un less otherw ise stated .



Cost of Goods Sold
Costs of goods sold are recognised when the sale of an item occurs by
transferring the cost or value of the item/s from inventories .
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e) Functional and Presentation Currency
The presentation curren cy of Goulburn Va lley H ea l th Is the Australian dol lar,
which has a lso been identified as the functional currency of the Health
Service .

f) Cash and Cash Equiva lents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise ca sh on hand and cash at bank , depos its
at ca ll and hig h ly liquid investments with an o rig inal maturity of 3 mon ths or
less, which are readi ly convertible to known amou nts of cash and a re subject
to ins ignificant r isk of changes in va l ue .

g) Receivables
Trade debtors are ca rried at nom inal amounts due and are due for
settlement w ith i n 30 days from the date of recognition. Collectability of debts
is reviewed o n an ongoing basis, and debts wh ich are known to be
unco i lectible a re written off . A p rovis ion fo r doubtfu l debts is raised where
doubt as to co l lection ex ists . Bad debts are wr i t ten off when ident i fie d .

Receivables are recognised initia l ly at fa i r value and subseque ntly measured
at amort ised cost, using the effective interest rate method, l ess any
accumu lated i mpairme nt .

h) Inventori es
Inventories include goods and other property held either for sale,
consumption or for distribution at no or nominal cost in the ordinary course
of business operations. It excludes depreciable assets .

Inventor ies held for distr ibution a re measu red at cost, adjusted fo r a ny loss
of service potent ial . A ll other inventories, includi ng land h eld fo r sa le , a re
measured at th e lower of cost and net realisable va lue .

The bases used in assessing loss of service potential for inventories held for
distribution include current replacement cost and technical or functional
obsolescence. Technical obsolescence occurs when an item still functions for
some or all of the tasks it was originally acquired to do, but no longer
matches existing technologies. Functional obsolescence occurs when an item
no longer functions the way it did when it was first acquired .

Cost fo r al l other inventory is m easured on the basis of weighted avera ge
cost . Inventor ies acquired for no cost o r nominal cons iderations are
meas ured a t cu rrent replacement cost at the date of acqu i sit ion .
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Plant, Equipment and Veh icles are recognised Initially at cost and
subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation and
impairment .

i) Investments and Other Financial Assets
Other financia l assets are recognised and derecognised on t rade date where
purchase or sa le of an investment is under a contract whose terms require
de livery of the investment w ith i n the timeframe esta b l ished by the ma rket
concerned, and are init ially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs .

Gou l burn Valley Health class ifies its other financial as sets betwee n curre nt
and non -cur rent a ssets based on the pu rpose for wh ich the assets were
acquired . Management determines the classification of its othe r financi al
assets at initi al recognition .

Goulbu rn Valley Health asse sses at each balance sheet date whether a
financial as set or group of fi nancial assets is impai red .

All financial asset s, except those measured a t fa ir value through profi t and
loss are subject to annua l rev iew for impai rment .

Held-to-maturity investments
Where the entity has the positive intent and ability to hold Investments to
maturity, they are stated at amortised cost less Impairment losses .

Available-for-sale financial assets
Other financia l assets held by the ent ity are classified as being ava i lable -for-
sa le and are measured at fa ir value. Gains and losses a rising from changes in
fair va lue are recognised direct ly in equ ity until the inves tment is disposed of
or is determined to be impaired, at wh ich time the cumulative ga i n or loss
previously recogn i sed i n equ ity Is included i n p rofit o r loss fo r the pe riod . Fa i r
value is determ ined in the manne r descr i b ed in Note 16 .

j) Property, Plant and Equipment
Crown Land is measured at fai r value w ith regard to the property 's highest
and best use after due cons ideration is made for any lega l or constructive
restrict i ons i mposed on the asset, public announc e ments or commitments
made i n relation to th e Intend ed use of the a sset . Theoretical oppo rtuni ties
that may be avai lable in re lation to the asset(s) are not taken into account
unt i l i t is v i rtually certain that any restrict ions w i l l no longer apply .

Land and Buildings are recognised in i t ia l l y at cost and subsequently
measu red at fair va lue less acc umulated depreciation and impairment .



Depreciation is provided on prop erty, pl ant and equipment, inclu ding
freehold bu ildings, b ut excluding land and investment properties .
Depreciat ion begins when the asset is ava ilable fo r use , which is when it is in
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k) Revaluations of Non-current Physical Assets
Non-current physical assets measu red at fair value are revalue d in
accordance with FRD 103D Non-current physica l assets . This revaluation
process normally occurs every five years, based upon the asset 's
Government Purpose Classifica tion, but m ay occu r more frequently if fair
va lu e assessments indicate material cha nges in values. Independent valuers
are used to conduct these schedu led revaluations and any interim
reva luations are determined in accordance with the requ i rements o f the
FRDs . Revaluation incre ments or decrements arise f ro m d i fferences between
an asset's carrying value and fai r va lue .

Revaluation increments are cred ited directly to the asset revaluation surp l us ,
except tha t, to the extent that an increment reverses a revaluation
decrement in resp ect of that class of ass et previously recogn ised as an
expense In net resu lt , the increment is recogn ised as i ncome in the net
result .

Revaluation decrements are recognised immed iately as expenses i n the net
result, except that, to the extent that a c redit ba lance exists in the asset
revaluation su rplus in respect of the same class of assets , they are debited
d i rectly to the asset revaluation surp l us .

Revaluation Increase s and revaluation d ecreases relat i ng to individu al assets
with i n an asset class are offset against one a nother with in that class but a re
not of fset in respect of assets in diffe rent classes .
Revaluation surpl u s are not tra nsferred to accumulated funds on
derecognition of the relevant ass et .

In accordance with FRD 103D, Goulburn Valley Health 's non- curre nt physical
assets were assessed to d etermine wh ether revaluat ion of the non-cu rrent
physical assets was required .

I) Depreciation
Assets with a cost in excess of $ 1,000 (2008-09 and 2009-10) are cap ita lised
and depreciation has been p rovided on deprec iable assets so as to allocat e
the i r cost or v aluat ion over t heir estimated useful lives us ing the stra ight- line
method, at a rate th a t a l locates the asset v a lue , less any est i mated res idua l
va l ue over its estimated usefu l l i fe . Estimates of the remaining useful lives
and d eprec i a tion method for al l assets are reviewed at least annua l ly. Th is
deprec iation charge is no t funded by the Department of Health .



The following table ind icates the expected usefu l liv es of non current assets
on which the depreciation charges are based .

2010
30 to 40 Years

10 Years
5 Years
3 Years
5 Years
7 Years

2009
30 to 40 Years

10 Years
5 Years
3 Years
5 Years
7 Years

Build ings
Plant & Equipmen t
Medical Equipment
Computers & Commun ications
Furni ture & Fit t ings
Moto r Veh icles

It is deemed that, in the event of the l oss of an asset, the future econom ic
benefits a rising from the use of the asset wil l be replaced un less a specific
dec ision to th e cont ra ry has been mad e . The recoverable amount for most
assets is measured at the hig her of depreciated replace ment cost and fa ir
value less costs to sell . Recove rable amou nt for asset s held primarily to
generate net cash inf lows is measured at the higher of the present value of
future cash flows expected to be obta ined from the asset and fair value les s
costs to se ll .
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the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in a
manner intended by management

m) Net Gain/(Loss) on Non - Financial Assets
Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets includes realised and unrealised gains
and losses from revaluations, impairments and disposals of all physical
assets .

Disposal of Non-Financial Assets
Any gain o r lo ss on the sa le of non -financia l assets is recognised at the date
that control of the as set is passed to the buyer and is determined after
deducting from the proceeds the carrying value of the asset at that tim e .

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
Apa rt from intangible asset s with indefin ite useful lives , a ll other assets are
assessed annua lly for i ndica ti o ns of impai rment, except for :

inventori es;
• assets ar ising from const ruct ion contracts .

If the re is an indication of impairment, the asset s concerned are tested a s to
whethe r their ca rry i ng value exceeds their possible recoverable amount .
Where a n asset 's carrying value exceeds its recoverab le amount , t he
d i fference i s written -off as an expense excep t to the ext ent that the wr ite -
down can be debited to an asset reval uat ion surplus amount appl icable to
that class o f asset .



The normal cred it terms are usua l ly Nett 30 days .
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n) N et Gain/ (Loss) on Financia l Instruments
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments includes realised and unrealised
gains and losses from revaluations of financial Instruments that are
designated at fair value through profit or loss or held-for-trading, impairment
and reversal of impairment for financial instruments at amortised cost, and
disposals of financial assets .

Revaluations of Financial Instruments at Fair Value
The revaluation gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value excludes
dividends or interest earned on financial assets .

Impairment of Financial Asset s
Financial Assets have been assessed for impairment in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards . Where a financial asset's fair value at
balance date has reduced by 20 per cent or more than its cost price ; or
where its fair value has been less than its cost price for a period of 12 or
more months, the financial instrument is treated as impaired .

In order to determine an appropriate fair value as at 30 June 2010 for its
portfolio of financial assets, Goulburn Valley Health obtained a valuation
based on the best available advice using an estimated market value through
a reputable financial institution . This value was compared against valuation
methodologies provided by the issuer as at 30 June 2010, These
methodologies were critiqued and considered to be consistent with standard
market valuation techniques .
Prices obtained from both sources were compared and were generally
consistent with the full portfolio . The above valuation process was used to
quantify the level of impairment on the portfolio of financial assets as at year
end .

o) Payables
These amounts cons ist predom i nant ly of li abil i ti es for goods and services .

Payab les are I nitia ll y recognised at fai r valu e, then su bsequently carr ied at
amortised cost and represent l iab i lit ies fo r goods and services prov ided to
the health service prior to the e nd of th e financial year that are u npaid , and
arise when the health service becomes obliged to mak e future payments i n
respect of the purchase of these goods and services .
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Those l iabilities that the entity are not exp ected to be s ettled within 12
months are recognised in the provision for employee benefits as n on
current l i abi l ities, measured at p rese nt value of the amou nts expected to be
paid whe n the l i a bil i t ies a re sett led us i ng the r emunerat ion rate expected to
apply at the time of settlement .

p) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Health Service has a present obl igat i on ,
the future sacr i fice of economic benefits i s pro bab le, and the amount of the
provision can be measu red reliab ly .

The a mount recogni sed as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration requi red to sett le the present obl ig a tion at reporting date ,
tak ing Into a ccount the risks and unce rta int ies surrounding th e obl igation .
Wh ere a provision is measured using the cash flows e stimated to settle the
present obl igation, its ca rrying amount is the p resent va lue of those cash
f lows .

q) Goods and Services Tax

Inco m e, expenses and assets are recogn ised net of the amount of associ ated
GST, unless the GST i ncu rred is not recove rab le from the taxation author ity .
In this cas e it is recognised as pa rt of the cost of acquisi tion of the asset or
as part of the exp ense .

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST
rece ivab le or payable . The ne t amount of GST recoverable from, or payabl e
to, the taxation autho rity is included w ith othe r receivables or payab l es in
the ba lance sheet .

Cash flows are presented on a gross ba sis. The G ST components of cash
flows ar ising from investing or f inancing activit ies which a re recoverab le from
or payable to the taxat ion author ity are presented as an operating cash flow .

Commitments a nd contingent liabilities are present s on a gross bas is

r) Employee Benefits
Wages an d Salaries, Annual Leave, Sick Leave and Accr ued D ays Off

Liab i lit i es for wages and sala ries, inc luding non-monetary benefits , a nnual
leave, accumulating sick leave an d accrued days off expected to b e settled
within 1 2 months of the reporting date are recogn ised in the p rovision for
employee benefits in respect of employee's serv ices up to the report i ng
date, class ified as cur rent l ia bi li ties a nd measured at nominal values .
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The name and deta ils of the major employ ee superannuation funds and
contribution s made by Goulburn Valley H ea l t h a re as fol lows :

Long Service Leave

The liab ili ty for long service l eave (LSL) is recognised in the p rovis i on fo r
employee benefits .

Current Liability - unconditional LSL (representing 10 or more years of
continuous service) is d i sclosed I n the note s to the financ i al s tateme nts as a
curren t l iability even where Goulbu rn Valley Health do es not expect to
settle the l iab il ity w ithin 12 m o nths becau se it wil l not h ave the
uncond itiona l righ t to defer the settlement of th e entitle m ent should an
employee take leave with i n 12 months .

The components of this current LSL liability are m easured a t :

present value - component that Goulburn Val ley Hea lth does not expect to
settle w i th i n 1 2 months; and

nominal value - component that Goulburn Va lley Hea lth expects to settle
withi n 12 months .

Non-Current Liability - conditional LSL (representin g less than 10
yea rs of continuou s service) is disclosed as a non-current liability . There is
a n unconditional right to d efer the settlement of the ent i tl ement until the
employee ha s completed the requisite yea rs of service . Conditio nal LSL is
requ ired to be measured at present value .

Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels ,
exp erience of emp loyee depa rtures and periods of se rv ice . Expected future
payments a re discounted using interest rates of Commonwealth
Government guarant eed securities in Aus tral i a .

Superannuation
Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are expensed
when incurred .

Defined benefit plans
The amount charged to the Comprehensive Operati ng St a tement in res pect
of defined benefit superannuatio n plans represents th e contr i butions made
by the Health Se rvice to the superannuation p lans in re spect of the services
of current heal th s erv i ce staff . Superannuat ion contribut ions are made to
the plans bas ed on the relevant ru les of each plan .

Employees of Goulburn Valley Health are entitled to receive superannuation
benefits and Goulburn Valley Health contributes to both the defined benefit
and defined contribution plans . The defined benefit plan(s) provide benefits
based on years of service and final average salary .
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Fund Contributions Paid or Payable
fo r th e year

2010 2009
$ '000 $'000

Defined benefit plans :
Health Super - revised and new 480 428
Vic Super

8 53
Defined contribution plans :

Health Su per 6100 5810

Hesta 1919 1498

Other 125 62

Total 8632 7851

On-Costs
Emp loyee benefits on-costs, such as payro ll tax, workers compensat ion ,

superannuation are recogn ised separate ly from provis ions for emp loyee

benefits .

Goulburn Valley Health does not recognise any unfunded defined benefit
liability in respect of the superannuation plans because the entity has no
legal or constructive obligation to pay future benefits relating to its
employees ; Its only obligation is to pay superannuation contributions as they
fall due . The Department of Treasury and Finance administers and discloses
the State's defined benefit liabilities in Its financial statements .

Termi natio n B enef i ts

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the
normal retirement date or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits .

Liab i liti es fo r terminat ion benef i t s are recognised when a deta i led plan fo r the
termination has been deve loped and a val id expectat ion has been ra ised wi th
those employees affected th at the terminations w i l l be carried out . The
liabiliti es for term ination benefits a re recognised i n other cred ito rs unless the
amount o r timing of the payments is u ncertain , in wh ich case they are
recognised as a provis ion .



Leases of property , plant and equipment are class i fied as finance leases
whenever the terms of the lease t ransfer substantially all the r i s ks and
rewards of ownersh i p to the lessee . All oth er leases are class ified as
operating leases .

Finance Leases

Entity as lessor

Goulburn Va lley Hea lth does not hold any finance lease arrangements w ith
other pa r t ies .

Entity as lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liab i li ties a t amounts equ a l to
the fa ir va l ue of th e lease property or, if lower, the present va lue of th e
m inimum lease payment, each determ i ned at th e inception of the lease . Th e

lease asset is deprec i ated over the sho rter of the estimated useful l ife of the
asset or the term of the lease . Minimum le ase payments are a pportion ed
between reduction of the outstanding lease liabil ity , and the pe riod ic finance

expense w h ich is calculated using the int erest rate implic i t i n the l ease , and
charged directly to the Comprehensive Operating Statement .
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s) Residential Aged Care Service
Goulburn Valley Health 's Resident ial Aged Care Service ope rations are an
integral pa rt of Goulburn Val ley Health and share its resources. An
apportionme nt of land and build ings has been made based on floor space .
The results of the two o perations have been segregated b ased on actua l
revenue earned and expenditure incurred by each operation in note 1 9 to th e
financial statements .
Goulburn Valley Health 's Res ident ial Ag e d Care does not have a separate
Committee of Management and is subst ant i ally funded from Commonw ea lth
bed-day subsidi es .

t) Joint Ventu res
Interests in jointly controlled assets are accounted for by recognising in
Goulburn Valley Health's financial statements, its share of assets, liabilities
and any revenue and expenses of such joint ventures . Details of the joint
venture are set out in note 18 .

u) Intersegment Transactions
Transactions between se gments within Goulbu rn Valley Health have been
elimina ted to reflect the extent of Goulbu rn Valley Hea lth's operations as a
group .

v) Lea ses
Leases are classified at their inception as either operating or finance leases
based on the economic substance of the agreement so as to reflect the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership .



Government Grants and other transfers of income (other than
contributions by owners)
Grants are recognised as Income when the health service gains control o f the

underlying assets in ac cordance w ith AASB 1004 Contributions . For
recip rocal grants, Goulburn Vall ey Health is deemed to have as sumed cont ro l
when the performance has occurred u nder the grant . For no n-reciproca l
grants, Goulburn Val ley Heal th is deeme d to have assumed control when the
grant is received or receivable . Cond itional grant s may be rec i procal or non -

recip roca l depending on the t erms of the grant .
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Operating Leases

Rental income from operating lease is recogn ised on a straight-l ine basis
over the term of the relevant lease .

Operating lease payments, includ ing any contingent rentals , are recogn ised
as an expense in the Comprehensive Operati ng Statement on a stra ight line
basis over t he lease term, except where another systemat ic bas is is more
representativ e of the t i me pattern of th e b enefit s derived from the use of th e
leased asset .

Lease Incentives

All i ncentives for the agreement of a new or renewed operati ng lea se are
recognised as an integral part of the net con sidera tion agreed for the use of
the leased asse t, irrespective of the incent ive 's nature or fo rm o r the tim ing
of payments .

In the event that lea se incent ives are received by the lessee to en ter in to
operating leases, such inc entives are recogn ised as a l i a bility . The aggregate
benefi ts of i ncent ives are recognised as a reduc tion of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except wh ere another systemat ic basis i s more
representat ive of the t i me pattern in wh ich econom ic bene fits from the
leased asset is diminishe d .

Leasehold Improvements

The cost o f leasehold improvements are cap ital ised as an asset and
depreciated ove r the remaining term of the lease or the estimated usefu l li fe
o f the i mprovements, whichever i s the shorter.

w) Income Recognition
Income is r ecogn ised in accordan ce with AASB 1 1 8 Revenue and is
recogn ised as to th e extent it is ea rned . Unearned income at reporting d ate

is repo rted as Income received in advan ce .

Amounts d isclosed as revenu e a re , where app licable, net of returns,
a ll owances and duties and taxes .



y) Services Supported By Health Services Agreement and
Services Suppo rted By Hospita l And Community Init i atives
Activities classified as Services Supported by Health Services Agreement
(HSA) are substantially funded by the Department of Health and includes
Residential Aged Care Services (RAGS) and are also funded from other
sources such as the Commonwealth, patients and residents, while
Services Supported by Hospital and Community Initiatives (Non HSA)
are funded by the Health Service's own activities or local initiatives
and/or the Commonwealth .
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Indi rect Contribution s from the Department of Health
- Insurance is recognised as revenue following advice from the

Department of Health .
- Lo ng Service Leave ( LSL) - Revenue is recognised upon fina llsation of

movements in LSL liability in line with the arrangements set out in the
Metropolitan Health and Aged Care Services Division Hospital Circular
14/2009 .

Patient and Resident Fees
Patient fees a re recognised as revenue at the time invoices are raised .

Private Practice Fees
Pri vate pract ice fees are recogn ised as revenue at the time invoices are
raised .

Donations and Other Bequests
Donatio ns and beques ts are recogni sed as revenue when rece ived . If
donations are for a special purpose, they may be appropr iated to a reserve,
such as the spec i f i c restricted pu rpose reserve .

Interest Revenue
Interest revenue is recognised o n a time proportionate bas is that takes in
account the effective yield of the financial asset .

x) Fund Accounting
Goulburn Valley Hea lth operates on a fund accounting bas is and ma intains
three funds : Operating, Sp ecific Purpo se and Capital Funds, Goulbu rn Va l l ey
Health 's Capi tal and Speci fic Purpose F unds inc l ude unspent capital donations
and receipts from fund -ra i s ing ac tiv i t i es conducted solely in res pect of th ese
funds .



Commitments are not r ecognised on the Bala nce Sheet . Commitments are
disc losed at their nom i na l va l ue and are inc lusive of GST paya ble .
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z) Resources Provided and Received Free of Charge or for
Nominal Consideration
Resou rces provided o r received o r rece ived free of cha rg e or for nom inal
consideration are recogn ised at the i r fai r value when the tra nsferee obtains
contro l over them , I rrespective of whether restrictions o r cond i t ions are
Imposed over the use of the contrib utions, un less received from another
Health Service or agency as a co nsequence of a restructur i ng of
administrative a r rangements . I n the la tter case, such transfer wil l be
recognised at carrying value . Contr i butions in t he form of services are on ly
recognised when a fair value can be re liab ly determined and the services
would have b een purchas e if not donated .

aa) Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Surplus
The asset revalu ation surplus is used to record increme nts and decrements
on the revaluation of non -current physical as sets .

ab) Financial Asset Available-for-Sale Revaluation Surplus
The available-for-sale revaluation surplus arises on the revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets . Where a revalued financial asset is sold
that portion of the reserve which relates to that financial asset is effectively
realised, and is recognised in the Comprehensive Operating Statement .
Where a revalued financial asset is impaired that portion of the reserve which
relates to that financial asset is recognised in the Comprehensive Operating
Statement .

ac) General Reserves
These are accum u lated funds of su rplus revenue ove r expenditure from fund
raising activit ies , community support p rograms and private p ract ice clinics .

ad) Specific Restricted Purpose Reserve
A specific restricted pu rpose reserve is established w here the health serv i ce
has possession or title to the fu nds but has no discretion to amend o r vary
the restriction and/o r condition underlying the funds rece ived .

a e) Contributed Capital
Consistent wit h Austra l ian Accounting Interpretat ion 1038 Contributions by
Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities and FRD 119
Contributions by Owners, appropriations for additions to the net asset base
have been designated as contributed capital . Other transfers that are in the
nature of contributions or distributions that have been designated as
contributed capital are also treated as contributed capital .

af) Commitm ents



S Assets provided or rece ived free of c ha rge , as described in note 1 (z)
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ag) Net Result Before Capital & Specific Items
The su btotal ent i tl ed 'Net result Before Capital & Spec i fic Items ' is include d in
the Comprehensive Operating Stateme nt to e nhance the understa n d i ng of
the financial performance of Goulb u rn Val ley Health . Th i s subtotal reports the
result excluding Items such a s capita l grants, assets received or provided
free of charg e, depreciation , and items of an unu sual natur e a nd amount
such as sp ecific reve nues a nd expenses . The exc l u si on of t h ese items are
made to enha nce matching of incom e and expe nses so as to fac i l i tate the
compa rability and cons istency of resu l ts between years and V ictorian Pub li c
Health Serv ices . The 'Net resu l t Before Ca pit al & Specif ic Items' is used by
the management of Goulburn Val ley Health, the Depar tmen t of Health and
the Victorian Government to measure t he ongo i ng resu lt of Health Serv ices
in operating hospital services .

Cap ita l and specif i c Items, which are exclu ded from th is sub- total, comprise :

:• Capital purpose income, which comprises all tied grants, donations and
bequests received for the purpose of acquiring non-current assets, such
as capital works or plant and equipment . It also includes donations of
plant and equipment (refer note 1 (z)) . Consequently the recognition of
revenue as capital purpose income is based on the intention of the
provider of the revenue at the time the revenue is provided .

:• Specific i ncome/expense, compr ises th e fol lowing items, where mater i al :

o Vo luntary departure packages
o Write-down of inventories
o Non-current a sset revaluation increments/decrements
o Diminution/impairment of investments
o Restructuring of op eration s (d isaggregation/aggregation of health

services)
o Litigation s ettlements
o Non-current assets lost or found
o Reversals of prov isions
o Volunta ry changes in accounting po l ici es (wh i ch are not required by

an account ing standard or othe r authoritative pronouncement of th e
Austra lian Accounting Standards Board)

:• Impairment of financial and non-financial assets, includes all impairment
losses (and reversal of previous impairment losses), which have been
recognised in accordance with note 1(m) and (n)

.• Depreciation, as described in note 1 (I)



Aged Care comp rises revenu e/expend i ture form Home and Comm unity Care
(HACC) prog rams, Al l i ed Heal th, Aged Care Assessment and support
services .

Goulburn Val ley Health
Notes t o t he Financial Statements

30 J une 2010

:• Expe nditure using cap i t al purpose i nco me, com prises expenditu re which
either fa lls be low the asset capital isat ion threshold (note 1 (I) ), or
doesn ' t meet asset recognition criteria and th erefore does not res ult in
the recogn ition of an as set in the balance s heet, where funding for tha t
expenditure is from cap ital purpose i ncome

ah) Category Groups
Gou l burn Vall ey H ealth has used the follow ing category groups for reporti ng
purposes for the current and pr evious financia l years .

Admitted Patient Services (Admitted Patients) comp ri ses a l l recurrent
health reven ue/expenditure on admi tted pat i ent services, where services a re
delivered i n pub l ic hosp itals , or free stand ing day hospi tal faci l ities, or alcoho l
and drug treatment units or hospitals specia l is ing in den tal services, hearing
and ophthalmic aids ,

Mental Health Services (Mental Health) comprises all recurrent hea lth
revenue/expenditure on spec ialised me nta l healt h services (ch ild a nd
ado lescent, general and adult , commu nity and forens ic) manage d o r funded
by the state or te r r i tory health a dministrations , and includes : Admitted
patient services ( includ i ng forensic menta l hea lth), outpatient service s,
emergency department se rvices (where i t is possib le to separate emergency
department mental health serv ices), community-bas ed se rv ices , res identi al
and ambulatory services .

Outpatient Services (Outpatients) comprises all recurrent heal th
revenue/expendi ture on pub l ic hos pital type outpatient service s, where
services are delivered in p ublic hospita l outpat i ent cl i n i cs, or free standing
day hospita l faci l i t ies, or rehabi l itation facilit ies, or alcoho l and drug
treatment un its, or outpatient clin i cs sp eci a li sing i n ophthalmi c a ids or
pall i ative ca re .

Eme rgency Depa rtment Services ( EDS) comprises all recurrent health
revenue/expenditure on emergency department services that are available
free of charge to public patients .



ai) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations
Certa i n new accounting standa rds and interpretat ions have been pub l ished
that are not mandatory for 30 June 20 10 reporting period . As at 30 June
2010 , the fol low ing sta ndards and interpretations had been issue d but were
not mandatory for f i nancia l years ending 30 June 2010 . Goulburn Valley
Hea lth has not and does not intend to adopt these standa rds early ,

Goulbu r n Val l ey Health
Notes to the Financ ial Statements

30 June 20 1 0

Off Campus, Ambulatory Services (Ambulatory) co m prises all recu rrent
health revenue/expen d itu re on public hospital type services i nclud ing
pa l l i ative care fa c i lities and rehab i litat i on facilities, as well as services
provided under the fol l owing agre ements : Services that are p rovided or
received by hosp itals (or a rea health se rvices) but are del ivered/rece i ved
outside a ho s p ital campus, services which h ave moved from a hos pital to a
community sett ing s ince Ju n e 1998, services which fal l within the ag reed
scope of inclusions under the n ew system, which have been de livered with i n
hospital's i .e . In rural/remot e a reas .

Residential Aged Care including Mental Health (RAC Ind . Mental
Health) refer red to in the pa st as psychogeriat ric res idential serv ices ,
comprises those Commonwealth - licensed residential aged ca re services in
receipt of supplementary funding from DHS under the mental h ealth
program . It exc ludes all other resident ial se rvices funded under the mental
health program, such as mental health-funded community care unit s (CCUs)
and secure extended care units (SECs) .

Other Services (Other)
Excluded from Australian Health Care Agreement (AHCA)
Com prises revenue/expenditure for services not separately classified above,
includ ing : Public hea lth serv ices i ncluding Laboratory testing, Blood Bo rne
Viruses / Sexually Transm i tted In fections clinical serv ices, Kooris liaison
officers, immunisation and sc reen ing se rvice s, Drugs se rvices includ ing d rug
withdrawal, counselling and the needle and syr i ng e program, Dental Health
services i ncluding general and specialist dental ca re, school d enta l services
and cl inical educat i on, Disab i l i ty services including a ids and equipment and
flexible support packages to peop le with a disa b i l ity , Commun ity Care
prog rams including sexua l assault suppor t, early pa renting services,
parent i ng assessment and sk ills deve l opment, and various su pport services .

H ea lth and Commun ity Initiatives also fal ls in this category group .

Included in Australian Health Care Agreement (AHCA)
Prima ry Care, wh ich inco rporates Community Health services inc l ud ing health
promot ion and counse l ling , physiothera py, speech therapy, podiatry and
occupational therapy .
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Standard/ Summary Applicable for Impact on Health
Interpretation Annual Services Financial

Reporting periods Statements
beginning on

AASB 2009-5 Some a mendments Beginning Terminology and

Further wi ll result in 1 Jan 2010 editorial cha nges .

amendments to accounting changes Impact minor .

Austra l ian fo r presentat i on,
Accounting recognition or
Standards arising measurement

from the annua l purposes, while
improvements other amendments

project will re l ate to
[AASB 5, 8, 101, terminology an d
117, 1 18 , 136 and ed i tori al cha nges .

1 39]

AASB 2009-9 Applies to Health Beginn ing No impact.

Amendments to Services adopting 1 Jan 2010 Relates on l y t o fi rst

Austral ian Australian time adopters of

Accounting Accounting Aust ra l ian

Standards - Standards for the Accounting
additiona l first time, to ensure Standards

exempt ion fo r first- Hea lth Serv i ces wi ll

time adopters not face undue cost
[AASB 1] or effort In the

transition process in

part icular si tuations .
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Standard/ Summary Applicable for Impact on Health
Interpretation Annual Services Financial

Reporting periods Statements
beginning on

AASB 124 Related Government related Beg inni ng Pre l im ina ry
party d isclosures Health Serv ices 1 Jan 2011 assessment
(Dec 2009) have been g ranted suggests that

partia l exemption impact is
with certa in insign ificant .
d isclosure However, the Hea l t h
requi rements . Ser vice i s s til l

assessing the

detailed impact and
whether to early
adopt .

AASB 2009-12 This s ta n dard Beginn i ng AASB 8 does not
Amend m ents to amends AASB 8 to 1 Jan 2 0 11 apply to Health

Austra l ian require a n en tity to Services there fore
Accounting exerc i se judgement no impact expec ted .

Standards [AASB 5, in assessing Otherwise, only
8, 108, 110, 112, whether a editorial changes
119 , 133, 137, 139 , government and aris i ng from

1023 and 1031 and Health Services amendments to
Interpretations 2, 4, known to b e under other st andards, no
1 6 1039 a nd 1052] the control o f that major impact .

government a re Impacts of ed i to r ia l
considered a single amendments are
customer for notexpected to be

purposes of certain signific ant .

operating segment
disc losu re .

This standard a lso
makes numerous
editorial

amendments to

other AASs .

AASB 2009 - 14 Amendment to Beg inn ing Expected to have no

Amendments to Interpretation 14 1 Jan 201 1 s i gn ific ant impac t .

Australian ar i sing from the

In terpre ta tion - issua nce of

Prepayments of a Prepayments of a

minimum fund ing minimum funding

requirement requirement.
[AASB

Interpretati on 14]
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Standard/ Summary Applicable for Impact on Health
Interpretation Annual Services Financial

Reporting periods Statements
beginning on

AASB 9 Financ ial This standard Beg inn ing Detai l o f impact is
Inst ruments simpl ifies 1 Jan 2013 sti l l bei ng assessed,

requireme nts for
the classification
and measurement

of financial assets
resulting from
Phase 1 of the
IASB's project to
rep lace IAS 39

Financial
instruments :
recognition and
measurement

(AASB 139 financial
Instruments:

recogn ition and
measurement) .

AASB 2009-11 This gives effect to Beg inn i ng Detail of Impa ct i s
Amendments to consequential 1 Ja n 2013 still b eing assessed .
Austra lian changes ar i sing
Accoun t ing from the Issuance of
Sta ndards arising AASB 9
from AASB 9 [AASB
1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 10 1 ,
102 , 108, 1 12, 118,
12 1, 127 , 1 28, 131 ,
1 32, 136, 1 39 ,
1 023 and 1038 and
Interpreta t ions 10
and 12]



Goulburn Valle y Health Notes to the Fi n ancial Sta t ements 30 June 2 010

HSA HSA Non HSA Non HSA Tota l Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
$'000 $ '000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

93,509 115,769 - - 93,509 115,769
31,02 6 - - - 31,026 -
2,632 2,476 - - 2,632 2,476
481 332 - - 481 332

8,510 6,831 - - 8,510 6,831
2,839 2,666 - - 2,839 2,666

138,997 128,074 - - 138, 9 97 128,074

2,091 1,889 - - 2,091 1,889
954 794 - - 954 794

3 ,045 2,683 - - 3,045 2,683

4,538 3,929 - 4,538 3,929
978 1,016 - - 978 1,016

5,516 4,945 - - 5 , 516 4,945

- - 1,134 693 1,134 693
- - 5,519 5,026 5,519 5,026
- - 3,642 3,029 3,642 3,029
- - 1,031 937 1,031 937

- - 1 - 1
- - 320 106 320 106

29 - 29
- 2,498 2,484 2,498 2,484

- - 256 456 256 456

- - 53 1,072 53 1,07 2
- 14,453 13,833 14,453 13,833

8 12 336 77 344 89
34 26 - - 34 26

4,982 3, 7 0 7 - - 4,982 3,707

1 52,582 139,447 14,789 13,910 167,37 1 153. 357

10 10 926 1,603 936 1,613

- - 1,002 1,375 1,002 1,375
- - 740 152 740 152

- - 101 - 101
842 - 842

- 20 184 20 184

- - (36) 76 ( 36) 76

- 235 168 235 168
- 1 , 961 2, 8 98 1,961 2,898

1 52,592 139 ,457 17,676 18,411 170,268 157,868Total Revenue (Refer Note 2a)

Indirect contributions by Department of Health : Department of Health makes insurance and long service leave
payments on behalf of Goulburn Valley Health . These amounts have been brought to account in determining the operating
result for the year by recording them as revenue and expenses .

N ote 2 : Revenue

Revenu e from Operating Activities

Government Grants
Department of Human Services
Depart ment o f H ea l th
Dental Health Services Vict oria
S tate Government - Other
Commonwealth Government :

Commonwealth Gran t s
Resi d en t ial Aged Care Subsid y

Total Gov ernment Grants

Ind i rect Co n tribution s by Dep artm e nt of H ea lth
Insurance
Long Service Leave
Total I nd i rect Contributions by Dep a rtment of Health

Pat ie nt and Resident Fees
Patient & Resident Fees (Refer Note 2b)
Residental Aged Care (Refer Note 2b)
Total Pati ent a nd Res i dent Fees

Busi ness Unit s and Sp e c ifi c Purpose Fun d s
Pr ivate Practice Clin i cs
Laboratory Medicine
Diagnos tic Imaging
Cafeteria and Cater i ng
P atient T rans p ort
Car Park
P roper ty I ncome
Regional Services
Re tail Aids & Eq ui p ment Out l e t
S p ecial P u rpose Funds
Total Busi nes s Un i ts and Specific Purpose Funds

Dona t io n s & Beques ts
Recoupment Priva t e Practice - Hospital Facili t ies
Other Revenue from Operating Acti vi ties

Sub -Tot a l Revenue f rom Operating Activities

Revenue from Non-Operating Activi ties
In terest

Revenue from Capita l Purpo se Income
State Government Capital Gran t s :
Targeted Capital Works and Equipment
Ot her Capital Gra nt s

Commonwealth Governmen t Capita l Grants
Donations
Asset s R eceived F r ee of Charge ( R efer Not e 2d)
Net Gain on Disposa l of N on-Current Assets (Refer Note
2[)

Residen t ial Accommodation Payments (Refer Note 2 b)
Sub-Total Revenue from Cap i ta l Purpose Incom e



Notes to the Fin anci a l St atements

Menta l
Health
2010
$•ooo

Admitted
Patie nts Outpatie nts
2010 2010
$'000 $'000

EDS Ambulatory
2010 2010
$•ooo $rooo

Government G rants
In d irect Contributions by Department of Hea lth
Pati ent and Resident Fees (Refer Note 2b )
Residental Aged Care (Refer Note 2b)
Recoupment Pri vate Prac ti ce - Hospital Facilities
I nte rest
Donations (Non Capita l)
Property Income
Other
Sub-Total Revenue From Services Supported By

8,120

21

34

7

69 , 31 1
2 ,652
2,80 1

488

5,432
96

237

33

13,761
88

248

10

688
3,555

5 ,383

203

1

4,453
1 2

978

1

16,823 15,714
- 197
1,013 15

138 ,997
3,045
4 ,538
978
34
1 0
8

688
37 180

Total Revenue 75,252 8,182 5 ,587 17,873 16 ,106 5,444 5,798 36,026 170,268

Indirect contributions by Department of Hea lth : Department of Health makes insurance and long service leave payments on behalf of
Goulburn Valley Hea lth. These amounts have been bro ugh t to account in determin i ng the operat i n g resu lt for the year by recording them as revenue and expenses.

Goulburn Valley Hea l th

Note 2a : Analysis of Revenue by Source

Revenue from Services Supported by Health
Service Agreement

RAC Incl .
Mental
Health
2010
$•ooo

Aged
Care
2010
$•ooo

Other
2010
$,000

30 June 2010

Total
2010
$1000

Health Service Agreement 75,252 8,182 5,587 1 7,873 16,1 06 5,444 5,798 18,350 152,592

Revenue from Services Supported by Hospital and
Communtiy In itia tives
Business Un i ts & Specifi c PurposeFunds - - - - - - - 14 ,453 14 ,453
Donat ions (Non Capital) - - - - - - - 336 336
I ntere st - - - - - - - 926 926
Capital Pu rpose Incom e (Refer Note 2) - - - - - - - 1,961 1,961
Sub-Total Revenue From Services Supported By
Hospital and Community Initiatives - - 17,676 1 7.676



Notes to the Financia l Statements 30 June 2010

RAC Incl .
Mental Mental Aged
Health Health Care Other Tota l
2009 2009 2009 2009 2009
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Admitted
Patients Outpatients
2009 2009
$'000 $'000

EDS Ambulatory
2009 2009
$'000 $'000

5,523 15,001

204 995

7,442

22

26

8

9

63,51 2
2,334
2 , 1 70

413

4 , 895
84

1 90

14

4,143
15

1,016

1

12,889
74

348

1 0
3

555

128 ,074
2 , 683
3,929
1 , 016

26
10
12

555
3 .152

14,669
1 76

1

29021 48

68,429 7,507 5,748 16,044 15,136 5,175 5,1 83 16,235 139 ,457

Revenue from Services Supported by Hospital a nd
Communtiy I n itiatives
Business Units & Specific Purpose Funds
Donations
Interest
Capital Purpose Income (Refer Note 2)
Sub-Total Revenue From Services Supported By
Hosp i ta l and Community In iti atives

- 13,833 13,833
- 77 77
- 1 ,603 1,603

2,898 2,898

- 18,411 18,41 1

Total Revenue 68,429 7 ,507 5,748 16,044 15,136 5,175 5,183 34,646 157 ,868

Indirect contributions by Department of Health : Department of Hea l th makes ins u ran ce and long serv ice leave payments on beha lf o f
Goulburn Val l ey Heal th . These amounts have been brought to account in dete rmining the operating resu lt fo r t he year by reco rd in g them as revenue and expenses .

Goulburn Valley Health

Note 2a : Analysis of Revenue by Source

Revenu e from Services Supported by Hea lth
Service Agreement

Government G rants
Ind irect Contributio ns by Department of Health
Patie nt a nd Res i dent Fees (Refe r No te 2b)
Resid ental Aged Care (Refe r Note 2 b)
Recoupment P rivate Practice - Hospital Facilities
Interest
Donat ions (Non Capita l)
Property I ncome
Other
Sub-Total Revenue From Services Supported By
Health Service Agreement



30 June 2010

2,170
955
266

2,817
935
242

727 772
251 244

544 538
5,516 4,9 45

235

Total
2010
$1000

10
2

258
270

Proceeds from Disposals of Non Current Assets
Computers & Communica t io n
Hume Rural H ea lt h A ll ia nce Asset s
Medica l E quipment
Moto r Vehicles
Total Proceeds from Disposal

6
652
658

(36) 76

Total Tota l
2010 2009
$ '000 $1000

132
20 52
20 184

During the year Goulburn Valley H ealth received a sha re of net
asse t s from Hum e NET Ltd .

Gou l bum Valley Health

Note 2b: Patien t and R esi dent F ees

Patient and Resident Fees Raised
Recurrent :
Acute :

I npa ti e n ts
Sub Acute
Outpati ents

Residential Aged Car e :
G ener ic
Mental Health

Menta l H eal th
other
Total Recurrent

Capital Purpose :
Residen ti al Accommodatio n Payments

Note 2c : Net G ain on Disposa l of Non-Current Asse t s

Notes to t h e Financial Statements

Total
2010
$1000

Written Down Value of Non-Current Assets Disposed
Computers & Communic a tion
Hume Rura l Hea l th A llia nce Asse ts
M edica l Equip men t
Motor Veh icles
Plant & E quipm ent
Total Written Down Value of Non -Current Assets Disposed

Net G a i ns/( Losses) on Disposa l o f Non-Cu rrent Asse ts

Note 2d : Assets Rece i ved Free of Charge

During the reporting pe rio d the f ai r val ue o f assets r eceived free
of charge was as follows :
Operat ing Asse ts and Liab il iti es from HumeNe t Lt d .
P lant & Equipm e nt

Tot a l
2009
$1000

168

Total
2009
$1000

6 -
3
43 32
248 550
6 -

306 582



Goulburn Va ll ey Health Notes to the Fi nancial Sta tements 30 June 20 10

HSA HSA Non HSA Non HSA Total Tota l
2010 2009 201 0 2009 2010 2009
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $ '000

89,957 8 0,041 9,301 9, 1 23 99,258 89,164
3,026 2,1 28 424 24 1 3, 450 2,369
7,760 7,054 796 799 8,556 7,853
564 51 2 53 58 617 570
106 62 41 35 147 97

1 01 ,413 89,797 10,615 10, 25 6 1 1 2 , 028 100,053

6,167 6,896 2,027 1,754 8, 1 94 8,65 0
1 ,238 1,154 - - 1 ,238 1,154
573 494 7 - 580 494

7,978 8,544 2,034 1,754 10,012 10,298

5,180 4,503 39 - 5,21 9 4,503
1 , 392 1,073 - - 1,392 1 ,073
7,677 6,241 3,136 1,804 10,813 8,045
160 279 46 166 206 445

1,034 948 667 405 1 ,701 1,353
5,283 5,455 4 4 5,287 5,459

20 ,726 18,499 3,892 2,379 24,618 20,878

4,944 4,477 (4,944) (4,477) - -
2,091 1,889 - - 2,091 1,889
7,932 7,014 714 1,882 8,646 8,896
1 ,587 1,514 220 159 1 ,807 1,673
1,451 1,170 6 5 1,457 1 , 17 5
666 632 81 92 747 724
1,289 1,956 502 418 1,791 2,374
663 650 607 548 1,270 1 ,198

1,454 1, 213 - - 1,454 1 ,213
1 1 52 29 23 40 75

2,030 1,790 579 655 2,609 2,445
49 43 - - 49 43

153 152 1 - 154 152

24,320 22 , 552 (2,205) (695) 22 ,115 21,857

- - 168 46 168 46
• - - 1,168 - 1,168

- - 1,286 - 1 ,286
- - 9,274 6,459 9,274 5,458

164,437 139 , 392 23,778 21,653 178 ,216 161 ,045Total E xpenses

Note 3 : Expenses

Emp loyee Benefits
Sa laries & Wage s
Long Service Leave
Superannuatio n
Workcover P remium
Departu re Packages

Total Employee Benefits

Non Salary Labour Costs
Fees for Visiting Medical Officers
Agency Costs - Nursing
Agency Costs - Other

Total Non Salary Labour Costs

Supplies & Consumables
Drug Supp lie s
Drug Supplies - 5100
Medica l , S urg ic a l S uppli es a nd Prosthesis
Pathology S upplies
Food Supp lies
Pat ient an d C lient Services

Total Supplies & Consumables

Other Expenses From Continuing Operatio ns
Tra n s fer P r icin g
I nsura nce Co s t Funded by DHS
Adminis tr ative Expenses
Domestic Services
Fuel, Light, Power and Water
Motor Vehicle Expenses
Repairs and Maintenance
Maintenance Contracts
Patient Transport
Bad & Doubtful Debts
Lease Expenses
Statements
Audit Fees - Other

Tota l Other Expenses From Con tinuing
Operations

Equipment Pu rchases
Impairment o f Fi nancial Assets
Available-for-Sale Revaluation Reserve Loss
Recognised (Refer Note 14(a) )
Depreciation and Amortisation (Refer Note 4)



Notes to the Financial Statement

RAC Incl.
Mental Mental
Health Health
2010 2010
$1000 $ 'ooo

Admitted
Patients Outpatients

2010 2010
$'ooo $'000

Aged
Care Other Total
2010 2010 2010
S1000 5 1000 51000

EDS Ambulatory
2010 2010
$1000 $1000

33,573 1,200 8,644 7,579 11,775 5,458 5,367 27,817 101,413
6,431 148 240 173 645 27 13 301 7,978
5,895 1,624 461 1,574 89 238 2,860 7,985 20,726
4,029 83 879 1,008 2,396 317 407 10,257 19,376

12,482 2,987 5,763 3,655 1,519 1,728 1,085 (24,275) 4,944

62 ,410 6,042 15,987 13,989 16,424 7,768 9,732 22,085 154,437

10,615 10,615
2,0 34 2,034
3,892 3,892
2,739 2,739

(4,944) (4,944)

14,336 14,336

168 168

9,274 9,274

62,410 6,042 15,987 13,989 16,424 7,768 9 ,732 45,863 175,215Total Expenses

Goulburn Valle y H ealth

Note 3a : Analysis o f Expenses by Source

Services Supported By Health Service Agreement
Employee Bene fit s
Non Salary Labour Costs
Supplies & Cons umables
Oth er Expenses from Continuing Operations
Transfer P rici ng
Sub-Total Expenses from Services S upported by H ea lth Se rvice
Agreement

Services Supported By Hospital & Community Initiatives
Emp loyee Benefits
Non Sa l ary L abour Costs
Supplies & Consumables
Other Expenses from Con tinuing Operations
T ransfer P rici ng
Sub -Total Expenses from Services Supported by Hospital and
Community Initiatives

Expenditure Using Capital Purpose Income
Equipment Purchases

Depreciat i on

30lune 2010



Notes to the Financial Statement 3 0 J une 2010

RAC Incl.
Admitted Mental Mental Aged
Patients Outpatients EDS Ambulatory Health Health Care Other Total
2009 2009 2009 2009 2009 2009 2009 2009 2009
5'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $ '000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

29, 536 1 , 071 7,664 6,718 10,732 4,682 3,559 25,835 89,797
7,132 140 265 105 547 19 27 309 8,544
5,705 1,289 417 970 105 216 679 9,118 18,499
3,603 85 742 830 2,064 341 341 10,069 18 ,075
18,201 3,054 5,705 3,423 1,662 1,934 371 (29, 873) 4 ,477

Services Supported By Health Service Agreement
Employee Benefits
Non Salary Labour Costs
Supplies & Consumables
Other Expenses fr om Continu i ng Ope r ations
Tra nsfe r Pricing

Sub-Total Expenses from Services Supported by Health Serv i ce
Agreement

Services Supported By Hospital & Community Initiatives
Employee Benefi ts
Non Salary Labour Costs
Su pplies & Consumables
Other Expenses from Continuing Operations
Tra n sfer Pricing
Sub-Total Expenses from Services Supported by Hospital and
Community Initiatives

Expenditure Us i ng Capital Purpose Income
Equipment Purchases

Impairment of Finan c ial Assets
Depreciation (R efer Note 4)

Total Expenses

5,639 14,793 12,046 15,110 4,977 15,458 139,392

10,256
1,754
2,379
3,782
(4,477)

13,694

10,256
1,754
2,379
3,782
(4,477)

13,694

- - - - - - 46 46

2,454 2,454
- - - 5,459 5,459

64,177 5,639 14,793 12,046 15,110 7,192 4,977 37,111 161,045

Gouiburn Valley Hea lth

Note 3a : Ana lysis of Expenses by Source

64,177 7,192



30 J une 2010Notes to the Financi al St a tem ent sGoulburn Valley Health

Total Total
2010 2009
$1000 $'000
6,165 2,400
600 608
54 67

1,460 1,410
688 691
302 267
5 16

9,274 5,459

Build i ngs
Computers & Commu ni c a t i on s
Furn i tur e & F i tt ings
Med ical Equ ipment
Motor Vehic les
Plant & Eq uipment
Hume Rural Heal t h All i a nce Equ ipment
Total

Note 3b : Analysis of Expenses by In te rnal and Restr ic ted
Sp ecif ic Purpose Funds for Serv ices Suppo rt ed by Hosp i t a l and
Community I ni ti a t i ves

P r iv a t e Practice Fees
Lab o r atory Med i cine
Diagnost ic Imaging
Ca fe te r i a and Cate rin g S ervice s
Patient Transpor t
Ca r Park
Regional Se rvi ce s
Retail M edical Out l e t

Other Activities
Fun d Rais i ng & Community Sup port
Total

Note 4: Depreciation

Transfer
Expenses Pricing Total Total
2010 2010 2010 2009
S1000 S'000 $,aoo S1000
462 (2) 460 294

8,347 (2,318) 6,0 29 5,353
6, 169 ( 2, 513) 3,65 6 2,866
1,170 65 1,235 1,192

6 8 (125) (57) (89)
5 3 15 68 5

2,59 9 (66) 2,533 2,411
23 6 25 261 445

19,104 (4,919 ) 14, 185 12,477

176 (25) 151 1,218
19,280 (4,944) 14,336 13,695



Goulburn V a lley H eal th No tes to t he Financial Statements

1 , 441 11,385Tot a l

Note S . Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purposes of the Statement of Cash F lows, ca s h i ncludes c a sh on han d
and ca s h in b anks, and sho rt-term depo si ts which a re read ily converti b le to
cash on hand , a nd are sub je c t to a n i n signi fi cant ris k of ch ange in value, net
o f o u t sta nding bank ove rdrafts .

Cash on H and
Cash at Bank
Funds Held In Tru s t a t B ank
Total

Represented by :
Cash for Healt h Service Ope r a ti ons ( as per Ca sh Flow Sta tement)
Hume Rur al Hea lth Alliance
Monies Held In Trust :
P atient Monies He ld I n Tru st
Refu nda ble En tr ance Fees
Region a l Prog rams Monies
Other Moni es He l d i n Tru s t
Total Monies In Trust

30 June 201 0

Total Total
2010 2009
$'000 $1000

35 32
1,406 5,410

- 5 ,943
1,441 11,385

1,102 4,979
339 463

- 17
- 3 ,398
- 2,403
- 125
- 5,943



Notes t o the Financial Statemen ts

Total Cu rrent R eceivables

236 236
( 1) -

235 236

Note 6(c): Nature and Extent of Risk Arising from Receivables
Please refer to note 16 (b ) f or the n ature and extent of r i sk ar i s in g from
receivables

Goulburn Valley Health

Note 6 : Receivables

Current
Contractual
Trade Debtors
Pa ti ent F ees - Health Service Agreem en t
P a ti e nt Fees - Hospital & Comm un ity In i t ia tives
Patien t Fees - Private P r act ice
Accrued Inv estment I ncome
Other A ccrued Revenue
Capital Debtors

Less Allowance for Doubtful Debts
Tra de Deb to rs
Pat i ent Fe es
Patient Fees - Hospital & Community I n itiati ves
Total Current Contractual Receivables

Statutory
Dental Heal th Serv i ces Victoria Accrued Grants
Commonwealth Government Gr ants
GST Receivable
Total Current Statutory Receivables

Non Current
Contractual
Debtor - Residential Tenancy Board
Statutory
Debtor - Dep artment Human Se r vices Long Service Leave
Total Non Current Receivables

Total Receivables

Note 6(a): Movement (n the Allowances for Doubtful Debts
Balance at Beginning of Year
I n c re ase/ (Decrease) in All owance Recognise d in Pro fit or Loss
Balance a t End of Ye a r

Note 6(b) : Ageing Analysis of Receivables
Please refe r to note 16(b ) fo r the ageing analys i s of r ece ivab l es

3OJune 20 1 0

Total Total
2010 2009

$'000 $'000

1,251 1 , 121
1,507 1,448
920 799
106 120
21 2 5

2 25 -
- 83

4,030 3,596

44 44
134 135
57 57

3,795 3,360

323 207
9 -

560 573
892 780

4,687 4,140

74 66

1 , 915 961
1 ,989 1,027

6,676 5 ,167



No tes t o the Fina n cial Statements

(b) : Ageing Analysis o f Other Financial Assets

Total Total
2010 2009
$1000 $1000
1,035 543Prepayments

Goul b u r n Valley Healt h

Note 7 : Other Financial Asset s

Current
Available -for-Sale Financial Assets
Aust rali an Do lla r Te rm Deposi t s
Austra lian Do l lar Term Deposits - Mon(es I n Trus t
Total

No n Current
Avai l able-for- Sa l e Fina ncia l Asse t s
Floating Rate Subordinated Debt
Total N on Current

Total Other F i nancia l A sse ts

Represented by :
Health S ervi ce I nves tme nts
Monies Held In Trust :
P ati ent Monies Held I n Trust
Refundable Entr a nce Fees
Regional P ro g rams Monies
Total Monies In Trust

Pl e ase refer to note 16(b ) for t h e a g eing analys i s of O the r Fina n c ia l A ssets

(c) : Nature and Extent of Risk Arising from Other Financial Assets
Please re fer to note 16( b ) for th e nature and exten t o f ris k arising from
Other Fin an cia l A sse ts

Note 8 : Inventories

Current (at cost)
Main Stor e
Theatre
Pathology
Engineerin g
Pharmaceutica l s
C a fe ter i a Supplies
Retai l Ou tl et M ed ical Equipme nt
Total Inventories

Note 9 : Other Assets

30 June 2 0 10

Total Total
2010 2009
$'000 $'00 0

5,029 9,362
5,471 -

10,500 9,362

846 846
846 846

11,346 10,208

5,875 10,208

15 -
3,227 -
L, LLtl

11,346 10,208

Total Total
2010 2009
$'000 $'000

359 336
395 321
216 248
55 55

525 421
11 9
34 32

1 ,595 1,422
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Furniture & F itt i ngs a t Fa ir Value
Less Accumulated Depreciation
To t al Furniture & F i tt i ngs a t Fair Value

5,450 2,019
91,563 97,728
11,689 12,422
108,702 112,169

Tota l a t C os t
Total at Valuation
Tota l a t F air Value
Total Property, Plan t and Equ ipment

Goulburn Valley Health

Note 10 : Property, Pl ant & Equipmen t

Land at Va luat io n

Land at Cost

Buildings at Valuation
Les s A ccumu lated Deprecia t i on
Total Buildings at Valuat ion

Buildings at Cost

Buildings Under Construction at Cost

Plant & Equipment at Fair Value
Less Accumu l ated Depreci a ti on
Total Plant & Equipment at Fair Value

Motor Vehicles at Fair Value
Less Accumula ted Depreciation
Total Motor Vehicles at Fair Value

Medical Equipment at Fair Value
Less Accumul a ted Deprec iati on
Total Medica l Equipment at Fair Value

Computers & Communicat io n a t F air Value
Less Accumulated Depreciation
To t al Computers & Communica tion at F ai r V a lue

Rural Hea lth Alliance - Share of Plan t and Equipmen t a t F ai r V al ue

30Ju ne 2010

Total Tota l
2010 2009
$' 0 00 $1000

8,351 8,351

165 -

197,468 197,468
114,256 108,091
83,212 89,377

204 2,019

1,870 1,374
300 -
1,570 1,374

3,317 2,997
642 -

2,675 2,997

7, 280 6, 190
t ASQ

5,821 6 , 190

2 ,038 1,650
589 -

1 , 449 1,650

204 197
54 -

150 197

24 14



Land
$'000

6,28 4
1,080

Bui ldings Equipment E qu ipment Communic' n

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

58,669
150

9,359

1,177 6,510 1,235
464 1,122 1,023

(32) -
Additions
Disposals
Work in Progress Transferred
Assets R eceived Free of Charge
Revaluation increments/(decrements)
Dep r ecia t ion (note 4)
Balance at 1 July 2009
Additio n s
Dispos a ls
Work in Progress Transferred
Assets Received Free of Charge
Depreciation (note 4)
Ba l ance at 30 J un e 2010

52- - 52
987 23,599 - - - - 24,586

(2,400) (267) (1,410) (608) (67) ( ssi) (16) (s,ass)
8,351 89,377 1,374 6,190 1,650 197 2,997 14 2,019 112,169
165 - 492 1,128 404 7 612 19 3,266 6,093

(7) (44) (5) (246) (4) (306)
(5,081)5 , 081

- - 13 7 - - - - - 20
- (6,165) (302) (1,460) (600) (54) (688) (5) - (9,274)

8,516 88,293 1,570 5,821 1,449 150 2,675 24 204 108,702

Plant and Equipment carried at fair value
An independent valua tion of the Health Service 's major medical equipment was performed by the Dominion Group to determine their fair value . An independent valuation was also performed on motor
vehi cles by t h e Health Service's fleet manager Webfleet Ma nagement Services to determine their fair value . The valuations, which conforms to Australian Valuation Standards, was determined by reference
to the am ounts for whi ch assets could be exchanged between knowledgeable wi lli n g parties in a n arm's length t ransaction. The valuation was based on independent assessments . The effective date of
valuation was 30th June 2010 .

Goulbum Valley Hea lth

Note 10 : Pro p erty, P l ant & Equipment (Continue d )

Reconciliation o f t he carrying amounts of each class of asset at

the beginning an d end of the previous and current financial
year is set out below.

Balance at 11 u1y 2008

Notes to the Financial statements

Pla nt& Medical Computers &

Hume
Rural

Furniture Motor Health Work in
& Fittings Vehicles Alliance Progress

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

226 2,658 - 7,258
38 1,548 10 4,120

(518) (32)
- - - (9,359)

30 June 2010

Total
$ ' 000

84,017
9,555
(582)

Land and buildings carried at valuation
An independent valuation of th e Hea lth Service's lan d a nd buildings was performed byt he Va l uer-General Victoria to det ermine t heir fa ir value. The valuation, which conforms to Australian Valuation
Standards, was determined by reference to the amounts for which assets could be replaced using depreciat ed replacement cost. The valuation was based on inde pendent assessments. The effective date of
valuation was 30th June 2009.



Not es to the F i nancial S ta temen t s 30 June 2010

Total Tota l
2010 2009
$ '000 $1000

7,448
117

1,741
130

9,436

5,469
23

1,452
80

TOTAL 10,838 15,315

Goulbu rn Valley Healt h

Note 11: Payables

Current
Contractual
Trade Cred i tors
Cap i t a l Cred i to rs
Acc rued E xpenses
Inc o me In Advance - Other

Statutory
GST Paya b le
FBT Paya ble
DHS Car Park Advance
In come In Advanc e - DHS
Commonwealth Government G ra n ts Pre pai d

130 126
32 -

1,800 1,800
1,852 3,923

- 3 0
3,814 5,879



Go ul6um Va l ley Hea l th No tes to the Financial Statements

Total Monies Held in Trust
Represented by the following assets :
Au s tral ian Dol lar Term D epos its
Cash at Bank
Total

- 5,943
5,471 5,943

Note 12 : Employee Bene f i t s and Re la ted On -Cost s Provisions

Current Provisions
Employee Benefits
- unconditional and e xpected to b e s ettled wi thin 12 months
- unconditional and expected to be settled aft e r 12 mon ths

Provisions related to employee benefit on -costs
Uncondi t i onal and expected to be sett led within 12 months (nominal va lu e )
Uncond i t i ona l and expected to be se t tled after 12 month s ( present va l u e)

To tal Current P rovision s

Non-Current Provisions
Employee Bene f its
Provisions rela ted to employee benefit o n-cost s
Total Non Current Provisions

Current Employee Benefits
Acc rued Salari es & Wages
Accrued Day s Off
Annua l L eave En titl ements
Unconditio na l Long Servi c e Leave Enti t l ements
Non Current Employee Benefits
Conditi ona l Long S ervice Leave Entitlements (prese nt valu e)
Total Employee Benefits
On-Cost s
Current On-Costs
Non-Current On-Costs
Total On-Costs
Total Employee Benefits and Related on-Costs

Movement In Long Service Leave :
Ba l ance a t start of ye ar
Provis i on made d u ri ng the year
- Expense recog ni sing em ployee service
Set tlement made during th e year
Ba l ance a t end of year

Note 13 : Other Liabilities

Current
Monies Held in Trust
Patient Monies Held in Trust
Accommodation Bonds (Refundable Entrance Fees)
Regional Program's Monies
Community Initiative Program
Total Current

30 June 2010

Total Total
2010 2009
$ '000 $'000

10, 7 16 9,977
8,172 7,554

18,888 17, 53 1

1,207 1,197
249 245
1,456 1,442
20,344 18,973

4,236 2,919
407 298

4,643 3,217

2,331 2,286
311 266

8,55 7 7,90 1
7,689 7,078

4,236 2,919
23,124 20,450

1,456 1,442
407 298

1,863 1,740
24,987 22,190

Total Total
2010 2009
$1000 $'000
11,016 9,782

3 , 450 2,369
( 1 , 40 1) (1,135 )
13,065 11,016

Total Tota l
2010 2009

$'000 $'000

15 17
3,227 3,398
2,229 2 ,403
- 125

5,471 5,943

5 , 471 -



Notes to the Fi nanc ial S tatemen t s

Note 14 : Equ ity & R eserves

89,499 97,446

(2) The financia l assets available-for-sale revaluation reserve arises on the
reva luati o n of available-for-sale fi nancia l a s s ets . Where a revalu ed financial
asset i s so ld , that portion of the reserve whi ch relat es to the fin ancial asse t,
a nd is effect ivel y rea li se d , is recognised i n the p rofit and loss. Where a
revalued financ i al asset i s im pa ired th at porti on of the re se rve wh i c h re l ates
to th at financi al asse t i s r ecognise d in profit and loss .

Goulburn Valley H ealth

(a) Reserves
Property, Plant and Equipment Revaluation Reserve ( 1)
B al ance a t th e Beginn ing o f th e Reporting Period
I n crea s e in th e Value o f Land
In c rease in the Va lue of Bu i ld i n gs
B al ance at the End of th e Reporting Period

Represented by :
Land
Bu ildings
Total

Available -For-Sale Revaluation Reserve (2)
B alance at the Beginning o f the Reporting P e rio d
Cumula ti ve Loss T r ansfe rr ed to Opera ti ng Statement on Impairment of
F i n a nci al Assets
Balance at the End of t h e Repo rt ing Per iod

General Purpose Reserve
Bal a nce a t the Begin ni ng of th e Report i ng Period
Tran s fer to a nd from Accumulated Def icit
B ala nce a t t he End of t he Reporting Period

Restricted Specific Purpose Reserve
Balance at the Beginn i n g of th e Reporting Period
Transfer to an d from Accumulated Defici t
B a l ance a t the En d of t he Reporting Perio d

To tal Re serves

(b) Contributed Capital
Ba lanc e a t the Beginning of the Reporti ng Perio d
Capital Contri but ion s received from Victo r i an Government
Balance at t he End of th e Reportin g Period

(c) Accumulated (Deficit)
Ba l ance a t the Beginn i ng of the Repor ti ng Period
Net R esul t for th e Yea r
Tr an s fer s to and from Gener a l Reserves
Tran sfer s to and from Restr ic ted Purpose Reserves
Balance at the End of t he Reporti ng Pe ri od

(d) Total Equity At End Of Financial Year

( 1) The property, p l an t and equ ipment asse t reval u a tio n r eserve a r ises o n
the revaluation of property, pl an t a nd equipment .

30 June 20 10

Total Total
2010 2009
$1000 $'000

46,346 21,760
987

- 23 , 599
46,346 46,346

5,218 5,218
41,128 41,128
46,346 46,346

(1,286)

- 1,286

16,892 15,385
1 ,070 1,507

17,962 16,892

5,256 4 , 326
- 930

5,256 5,256

69,564 68,494

46,821 46,821

46,821 46,821

(1 7,869) (12,255 )
( 7,9 47) (3,177)
(1 ,070) (1,507)

- (930)
( 26, 886) (17,869)



Go ulhurnValley H ealth Notes t o the Financial Sta t ements

36 (7 6)

(4,383 ) 5,338
(472) 770

2,797 1,2 31
(770 )

( 1 73) (240)
596 (76)

(492 )
( 1 , 591 ) (2 72 )
( 2, 376) 10,068

Change in Opera tin g Ass ets and L iab il it ies, Net of E ffect o f Restru ctu r ing
I ncrease/ (Decrease ) i n P ayab l es
Increase/(Dec r ease) i n Oth e r L i ab ilit ies
Inc rease/(Dec rease ) In Employee Benef i ts
( In crease) /Decrea se in Merles I n Tr u st
(I ncrea se ) /Decrease in I nventor y
(Increase)/Decrease i n Oth er Assets
(I n crease)/Decreas e i n Prep ayments
( In c rease)/Decrease in Receivables

Net Cash Inflow/Outflow from Operating Activities

No te 15 : Reconci l iation of N et R esul t for the Year to Net Cash Inf lows from
Opera t ing Act iv i t ies

Net Result for the Year

Deprec ia tion
Asset s Recei ved Free of Ch a r ge - DHS Capi tal
Rura l Heal th A lli ance Operati ng Non-Cash T r ansacti ons
Asset s Received Free of Cha rge - Other
Impairment of Financial As sets
Provis i on for Doub t ful Debts
Net (Pr ofi t)/D efi cit fro m the Sa l e of P ro pery, Plant & Equipm en t

30 June 2010

Total Tota l
20 10 2009
$'000 $'000
(7,947) (3,177)

9,274 5,459
(62)

- (511)
(20)
- 2,454
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Note 16 : F ina ncial Instrument s

Carrying Carrying
Amount Amount

609 (1,3 18)
936 (841)

Financial Liabilities
At Amor tised Cost

Go ulhum Valley H ealth

16(a) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
Gou lburn Valle y Health's prin cip al fin ancia l instrum ents comprise of :
Cash Assets
Term Depo si ts
Receivables (excluding statutory receiva b les )
I nve stment in Equ i ties and Managed I nvestment Schemes
Payables (excluding statutory Paya bl e s)
Accommodation Bonds

Deta i ls of the sig n i fi ca nt a ccou nting policies an d methods adopted, includ ing the c riteria f o r rec ogni t io n , th e basis of
mea surement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, w ith r espect t o each class of fi n a nci al asset,
fi nanci al l i a bil it y a nd equity in st r ument are d i scl osed in note 1 t o t h e fi nancia l s t atements .

The main purpose in h o l d in g f inan cial In strument s i s to pr udential ly manage Goulburn
Valle y Hea l t h' s fi nanci al ris ks w i thin the gove r n ment polic y paramete rs .

Categorisation of Financial Instruments
D eta il s of each ca tego ri es in acco rdance w i th AASB 1 3 9, s h a l l b e d iscl osed . e ithe r on the face of t he balance s heet or i n the
notes .

Financ i al Assets
Cash and Cash Equ i v a l ent s
Loa ns and Receivab les
Ava ilable fo r Sa l e
Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities
At Amor t ise d Cost

Net hold ing gain/(l oss) o n fi n ancial i ns t rumen t s by c a tegory

Financial Assets
Cash & Cash Equiva l ents
Loans an d Rece ivables
Ava il ab l e fo r S ale
Total Financial Assets

2010 2009
$1000 $1000

1,441 11,385
3,869 3,426

11,346 10,208
16,656 25,019

12,495 15,379

Carrying Carrying
Amount Amount

2010 2009
$'000 $'000
327 477



Goulbur n V alley H ealt h's exposure to credi t ris k and effective weighted average Interest r ate by ageing periods is set out In the fol l owing table . For
Interest rates applicable to each class of asset refer to Individual notes to the financial statements .

Ageing Analysis of Financial Asset s a s at 30 June
Past Due but Not Im aired

Not Past
Carrying Due and 3 Months
Amount Not Impaired 1-3 Mo n ths • 1 Ye a r 1-5 Years

2010 $'000 $,000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financ i al Asse ts
Cash and Cash Equiva l en ts 1,441 1,441 - - -
Receivables :

D e b tors and Patien t Fees 3,623 1,766 991 830 36
Accrued Revenue 246 246 - - -

Other Financial Assets
Au stralian Dol lar Term Deposi ts 10,500 10,500 - -
Floating Rate SubordinatedDebt 846 846 - -

Total Financial Assets 16,656 14,799 991 830 36
2009
F i nancial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalen ts 11,385 11,385 - - -
ReceNables :

Deb t ors and Patie ntFees 3,401 1,658 930 779 34
Accrued Revenue 25 25 - - -

Other Financial Assets
Australia n Dollar Term deposits 9,362 9,362 - - -
Floating Rate Subordinated Debt 846 846 -

Total Financial Assets 25,019 23,276 930 779 34

No te 16 : Financia l In st rumen t s (con ti nued)
16(c) Liquidity Risk
Th e fol l ow i ng table disclose s t h e contractual maturi ty analysis for Goulhurn Va l ley Health's financial l iabilities .
Maturity Analysi s of Financial Liabi l ities as at 30 June

Maturity Dates
Contractua l

Carrying Cash 3 Months
Amount Flows 1 -3 Mon t hs - 1 Year 1 - S Years

2010 $1000 $,000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Liabilities
Payables 7,024 7,024 7,024 - -
Other Financial Liabilities
-Accomodation Bonds 3,227 3,227 - 3,227
- Other 2,244 2,244 - 2,244
Total Financial Liabilities 12,495 12,495 7,024 5,471
2009
Fina n cial Liabi l ities
Payables 9,436 9,436 9,436
Other Financial Liabilities
-Accomoda tion Bonds 3,398 3,398 - 3,398
- Other 2,545 2,545 2,545
Total Financial Liabilit i es 15,379 15,379 9,436 5,943

Govlburn ValleyHealth Note to the Finantlal5tatements 30 Ju ne 2010

No te 16 : F ina n cia l I nstrumen t s (co nt i nued )
16(b) Credit Risk



Expos u re to interes t rate r is k might arise p rimarily through the Go u lburn Valley Health's Interest bea ring Ilabilities . Minimisation of ris k is achieved by mainly
undert aking fixed r ate or no minteres t bearing finan c ial instru ments . For financial liabilities, the hospi ta l main ly Undertakes financial liabilities wi t h rela tively even
matur ity prof iles .

Int e res t Rat e Exposure of F i nanc ia l Asset s and Liabilities as a t 30 June
Int e rest Ra te Ex osure

Weig h t ed
Average Fixed Variable No n
Effective Carry ing Inte r e s t Interest Inte res t

Interest Amount Rate Rate Bea ri n g
2010 Rate Y $ '000 $'000 $'40B $ '000
FinancialAss ets
Cash and Cas hEquivalents 3.28% 1,441 - 1,406 35
Rece ivab les :

Patient Fees an d Trade Debtors - 3,623 - - 3,623
Other Receivables - 246 - - 246

Other Fi nancial Asse t s :
Term Deposits 5.62% 5,029 - 5,029 -
Shares in Other Entities 6.29% 846 846

Total Financial Assets 11,185 7,281 3,904
Financial Liabilities
Payables - 7,024 - - 7,024
Other F inancia l Liabilities
-Accommodation Bonds - 3,227 - - 3,227
-Other 2 ,2 44 2,244
Tota l Financial Liabilities 12,495 12,495

2009
F in ancia l A s s e ts
Cash an d Cash Equivale nts 2.93% 11,385 - 11,353 32
Receivables :

Patient F ees an d Trade Debtors - 3,401 - - 3,401

Other Receivables - 25 - 25
Other Financial Asse t s :

Te rm Deposits 3.95% 9,362 - 9,362
Shares in Other Entities 5.95% 846 846 -

Total Financial Assets 25,019 21,561 3,458

Financial Liabilities
Payables - 9,436 - - 9,436

Other Financial Liabilities
-Accommodation Bonds - 3,398 - - 3,398
-Other 2,545 2,545
Tot a l Financial Li abil ities 15,379 15,379

Ga ulb u m Val ley Health Note [o the Flnantlal State ments 301une 2010

Note 16 : Financia l instruments (conti nu e d)
16(d) Ma r ke t R i sk

Gou lb urn Valley Health's exposures to market ri s k are primarily t hrough i n terest ra te risk with only insignificant expos u re to foreign currency and other price
r isks . Objectives, policies an d processes used t o manage each of these risks are disclosed in the paragrap h below.

Cu r re n cy Risk

Go u lb u rn Valley Healt h is exposed to Insignif i cant foreign currency risk through its paya6les relating to pur chases of supplies and cons u mables from overseas.
T his is because of a limited amount of purc h ases denominated in foreign currencies and a short time-frame between comm itment an d set t lement .

I ntere st R at e R i sk



Taki n g i n to accou n t past performance, fut u re expectations, economic forecasts, and management's knowledge and experience of t he financial markets,
Go u l h urn Valle y Health bel ieves the following movements are 'reasonably possible' over the nex t 12 months (Base rates are sou red from the Reserve
Bank of Australia)
-A Shift of +1% and -1% In markets Interest rates (A U D) from year-end ra tes of 6% ;
-A parallel shirt of +l%and-1% in inflation rate fr om year-end rates of 2%;
The following tabled iscloses the Impact on n et o p erating r esult and equity for each c ategory of financial i nstrument held by Go ul6urn Valley Health at yea rend
as presented to key managemen t personnel, if changes in the relevant risk occur.

Inte re st Ra te Risk

- 1Y +1%
Car ryi ng
Amount Profit Equ ity Profit Equ i ty

2010 $,000 $'000 $'000 $' 000 $'000
Financial Assets
Cash & Cash Equivale nts 1,441 (14) (14) 14 1 4
Receivables
- Trade Debto rs 3,623 - - - -
Other Receivab les 246 (2) (2) 2 2

Other Financial Assets
-TermDeposits 10,500 (105) (105) 105 105
- Shares in other Entities 846 (8) (8) 8 8

Financi al Lia bil i ti e s
Payables 7,024 -
Other Financia l Liablities
-ACCOmodat ion Bonds 3,227 - - - -
-othe r Financial Liabilities 2,244

129 129 129 129
2009
F i n a ncial Ass e ts
Cash & Cash Eq uivalents 11,385 (114) (114) 114 114
Receivables
- Trade Debto rs 3,401 - - - -
-0ther Receivables 25 - - - -
Other Financial Assets
-Term Deposits 9,362 (94) (94) 94 94
- Shares in ot h e rEntitles 846 (8) (8) 8 8

Financial Liabilities
Payables 9,436 - - -
Other Financial Liablities
-Accomodation Bonds 3,398 - - -
- Other Financial Liabilities 2,545

(216 216 216 216

Gou lburn Vai'ey Health Note to the Financial Statements Solace 2010

Note 16: Financial Instruments (continued)
(d) Market Risk (continued)
Sensitivity Disclosure Analysis



The fol l owing table shows that t he fair values o f most of the contractual f inancial assets a n d l iabilities are the same as t he carrying
amounts .
Comparison between carrying amount and fair value

Carryi ng Amount Fair Value Ca rryi n g Amount Fair Value
2010 2010 2010 2009 2009
Finan ci al Asset s
Cash and Cas h Equivalen ts 1,441 1,441 11,385 11,385
Receivables :

Patie n t Fees and Trade Deb tors 3,623 3,848 3,401 3,401
Other Receivables 246 21 25 25

Other Financia l Assets :
- Term Deposi t s 10,500 10,500 9,362 9,362
- Shares in oth er Entitles 846 846 846 846
Tot al Financial Assets 16,656 16,656 25,019 25,019

Financial Liabil i ties
Payables 7,024 7,024 9,436 9,436
Other Financial Liabilities
- Accommodation Bonds 3,227 3,227 3,398 3,398
- Other 2,244 2,244 2,545 2,545
Total Financial Liabilities 1 2,495 12,495 15,379 15,379

2009
Financia l As sets M easured at Fa i r Value Thro u gh Prof i t and
Loss
Availa bl e for S ale Financial A ssets
- Equities and Managed Funds 846 846
Tota l Fin a ncial As se ts Sq6 846

Gou l b urn Va ll ey Health Notes to the F ina ncial S tatements 30 June201 0

Note 16 : Financial Instrum ents (continued)
16(e ) Fa i r Value
The fair v a lues and net fair val u es o f fin ancial i nstrument assets and liabilities ar e determined as follows :
-t he fai r val ue of financial instrument asset s and lia biliti es with standa rd terms and condi tions and traded i n ac t ive liquid marke t s
are determ i ned wi th refere n ce to quoted ma rket prices ;
and
-the fa ir val ue of oth er Financial instrume nt asse ts and liabilities a re determined in accordance with ge n erally accepted p rici n g
models based on discounted cash flow analysis .

The Hea lth Services consid ers that the carrying amoun t of fina nc ial i nst rumen t assets and liabilities recorded in the financia l
statements to be a fair approximation of their fair va l ue s , because o f the sho rt-term nat ure of the fi nancial instruments and the
expec tat ion th a t they will be p aid in ful l .

Ca rryi n g Amount I Fai r Va lue M eas uremen t at end of
as at 301une Repor ti n g Period Usi n g :

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value Through Profit and
Loss
Ava ila ble for Sale Financial Assets
- Equities and Ma naged funds 846 846
Total Fin a ncial Assets 846 846



Notes to the Financl a[ statements

Lease Commitments
Not l a te r t h an one year
Late r than one year and not later than 5 yea r s
Late r than 5 years
Total Lease Commitments

3,057 5,088
(278) (463)

2,779 4,625

Total Commitments for Expenditure (Inclus ive of GST)
L e ss GST Recover a ble from the Austra l ian Taxation Office
Total Commitments for Expenditure (Exclusive of GST)

Goulbu rn Valle y Health

Note 17 : Commitments fo r Expend it ure

Capital Expenditure Commitments
Buildings
Car Park Upgrade
Medical Sta ff Offi ce Accommodation
Rushworth Med i c al Cl inic
Total Building Commitments

Buildings
Commitments d u e not la te r tha n on e year

Lease Commitment s
Operating Lease Commitments
Major M edical E quipment
Non M edical Equ ipmen t
Motor Vehicl es
Tota l Lease Comm itme nts

30 June 2010

Total Total
2010 2009
$'000 $'000

- 1,353
- 319
- 330
- 2,002

2,002

1, 764 1,334
1,115 1,540
178 212

3,057 3,086

1,316 1,178
1,741 1,908

3,057 3,086



No t es to the Financial Statements

No te 18: Jointly Controlle d Operations and Asse ts

Expenses
Non Sal ary L a bou r Cos ts
Operating E xpenses
Depreciation
Ca p it a l Expend i tur e
Total Expenses

192 116
550 565

5
68 33

815 714

Goulburn Valley H ealt h

Goulburn Vall ey Health controls 20% share of the Hume Rural He al th
All ian c e, whose p rin c ip al a c tivity is to pr ovi de information sy stems to Hea lt h
Serv i ce Provi ders in th e Department of Human Services' Hume region .
Interests in assets emp l oyed in the above jointly controlled operations and
assets is detailed below . The amounts are included in the financial
statements u nder thei r re specti ve a sset catergorie s .

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equiva len t s
Receivables
Other Asse ts
Total Current Assets

Non Current Assets
Plan t a nd Equ ipment

Current Liabilities
Payables
Total Liabilities

Gou l burn Valley Health 's in t e rest in revenue and expenses resu l ting from
join t l y c on tro ll ed operations and assets i s d etailed be l ow
Revenues
Governmen t G rants
Operati ng Revenue
Non Ope r a t i n g R even ue
Total Revenue

3 0 June 2010

Ownershi p I n t e res t
2010 2009

20 . 24% 21.96%

Total To ta l
2010 2009
$'000 $1000

339 463
244 257
12 10

595 730

24 14

160 2 11
160 211

313
336 241
10 -

346 554



30June 2010

Total Total
2010 2009 2010 2009
S1ooo $'000 $1ooo S'ooo

2010 2009
$-ooo $.000

Segment Liabilities
Unallocated Liabilities
Total Liabilities (Unallocated)

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation
Non Cash expenses other than Depreciation

The major services from which the above segments derive income are :
Residential Aged Care Services
Other HSA & Non HSA Services - Acute and Community Services

Pricing between inter-segments is at cost

Goulburn Valley Health operates predominantly in Shepparton, Victoria . More than
90% of revenue, net surplus from ordinary activities and segment assets relate to
operations in Shepparton, Victoria .

- - 6,113 9,607 6,113 9,607
- 9,274 5,459 9,274 5,459
- - 2,454 - 2,454

Goulburn Val ley Health

Note 19: Segment Reporti ng

REVENUE
Tot a l R evenue ( Externa l Segment R evenue)

EXPENSES
External Segment Exp enses
I ntersegment Expenses
Total Expenses

Net Res ul t From O rd i nary A ctivitie s
Interest Income
Net Resu lt for Yea r

Other I nfo rmation
Segment Assets
Unallocated Assets
Total Assets

Notes to the Financial Statements

Residential Aged
Care Services

Other HSA &
Non HSA Services

5,445 5,175 163,887 151,080 169,332 156,255

6,041 5,256 172,174 155,789 178,215 161,045
1,728 1,734 (1,728) (1,734) - -
7,769 6,990 170,446 154,055 178,215 161,045

(2,324) (1,815) (6,559) (2,975) (8,883) (4,790)
- - 936 1,613 936 1,613

(2,324) (1,815) (5,623) (1,362) (7,947) (3,177)

33 163 - - 33 163
- - 130,762 140,731 130,762 140,731
33 163 130,762 140,731 130,795 140,894

13 14 - - 13 14
- 41,283 43,434 41,283 43,434
13 14 41,283 43,434 41,296 43,448



Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 20a : Responsible Person Rel a ted Disclosures

445 493

Amount s re l atin g to Respons ibl e Ministe rs are r e por te d In th e financia l
stateme nts of th e Department of Premier and Cab i n e t .

Goulburn Valley H ealth

In accordance with t he M ini s terial Dir ectio ns iss ued by t he Ministe r o f
F i nance under the F i nancial Managemen t Act 199 4, the fo ll ow i ng d is c lo su r es
are made regarding responsi b le pe r sons for the report i ng pe ri o d .

Respons i ble Ministers :
The Honourable Dan i e l Andrews, MLA, Mi niste r fo r H ealth

Board of Directors
Mr . C .C . F urphy
Mr . C . Ha zelman
Mr . N . Maughan
D r . P . D a lg li esh
Ms . L . To rres
Ms . R . Woolstencro ft
Mr. B . G u rr y
Mr. I . McKinnon
Ms R. Knaggs

Accountable Officers
Ms . K. M . Healy

Remuneration of Responsible Persons
The number of R espons ibl e P e rsons are shown in the i r rel evant income
bands;

Income Band
0-$9,999
$10 ,000 - $19 ,999
$30 ,000 - $39 ,999
$40,000 - $49,999
$70 ,000 - $79 ,999
$240,000 - $249,999
$270,000 - $279,999
Total Numbe r s

Total remuneration rece i ved or due and receivable by Responsible Persons
from the reporting entity amounted to :

30 June 2010

Period
From To
01/07/2009 30/06/2010

01/07/2009 30/06/2010
01/07J2009 30/06/2010
01J07/2009 30/06/2010
01/07/2009 30/06/2010
01/07/2009 30/06/2010
01/07/2009 30/06/2010
01/07/2009 30/06/2010
01/07/2009 30/06/2010
16/02/2010 30/06/2010

2010 2009
No. No .
1 1
7 7
0 1
1 0
0 1
0 1
1 0
10 11

Total Total
2010 2009
$'000 $ '000



Natesto the Financial Statements 30 J u ne 2010

The number of executive officers, otherthan Ministers and Accountable
Officers, and theirtotal remuneration during the reporting period are shown
in the first two columns in the table below in their relevant income bands .
The base remuneration of executive officers is shown in the third and fourth
columns . Base remuneration is exclusive of bonus payments, long-service
leave payments, redundancy payments and retirement benefits .

ENTITY

Total Remuneration Base Remuneration
2010 2009 2010 2009
No. No. No . No .
1 - 2 -
1 - - 2
_ 2 2 _

2 1 - 1
1 - 1 1

- 2 - 1
- - 2 -

2 - - -

- - - 1
- 1 1 -
1 - - -
8 6 8 6

1,471 1,109 1, 415 1, 0 6 4Total Remuneration $ '000

Goulbum Va l ley Health

Note 20b: Exec u tive Officer Disclosures

Executive Officers' Remuneration

$130,000 - $139,999
$140,000 - $149,999
$150,000 - $159 ,999
$160,000 - $169 ,999
$170,000-$179,999
$180,000 - $189 ,999
$190,000 - $199 ,999
$200,000 - $209 ,999
$240,000 - $249 ,999
$260,000 - $269 ,999
$270,000 - $279,999

Total



Note 22 : Ex -gratis Payments
There were no ex-gra tis paym ents made by Goulburn Vall ey Health du r i ng the 200 9/2010 financ i al year

Goulburn Valley Health Not es t o the Financial Statements 30 June 20 10

Note 21 : Cont i ngent Assets and Liab i lit ies

There a r e no known contingent li a biliti es o r assets a t th e date of th is report .



CONTENTSVISION
Working together to achieve healthier 

communities.

MISSION
In collaboration with the Community, GV 
Health will continually strive to improve 
the quality of integrated services that 

achieve the best possible individual and 
community health outcomes. 

STATEMENT OF 
VALUES

Goulburn Valley Health is committed to:
• Person Centred Care;

• Integrated and effective services and 
facilities;

• Improving Quality and Safety;
• Caring, Competent & Empowered 

workforce;
• Responding to diversity;
• Financial responsibility;

• Equity of access;
• Consumer and community 

engagement.
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Annual Financial and  
Performance Report 
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GoulbuRn VAlley HeAltH

Working together to achieve a heal thier communi ty

GOULBURN VALLEY HEALTH CAMPUS CONTACTS
Goulburn Valley Health Shepparton Campus

 Graham Street, Shepparton, Victoria, 3630 Tel:(03) 5832 2322 Fax:(03) 5821 1648

Mental Health Campus

 Monash Street, Shepparton, Victoria, 3630 Tel:(03) 5832 2111 Fax(03) 5832 2100

Tatura Campus

 64-68 Park Street, Tatura, Victoria, 3630 Tel:(03) 5824 8400 Fax(03) 5824 8444

Waranga Campus

 Coyle Street, Rushworth, Victoria, 3630 Tel:(03) 5851 8000 Fax(03) 5856 1916

UNA House Campus

 Corio Street, Shepparton, Victoria 3630 Tel:(03) 5823 6555 Fax(03) 5822 2584

Centre Against Sexual Assault Campus

 Nixon Street, Shepparton, Victoria, 3630 Tel:(03) 5831 2343 Fax(03) 5831 1996

Centre for Older Person’s Health Campus

 80 Orr Street, Shepparton, Victoria Tel:(03) 5823 6000 Fax(03) 5831 8500

ASSOCIATED HOSPITALS
Nathalia District Hospital

 Elizabeth Street, Nathalia, Victoria, 3638 Tel:(03) 5866 9444 Fax(03) 5866 2042

Yea & District Memorial Hospital

 Station Street, Yea, Victoria, 3717 Tel:(03) 5736 0400 Fax(03) 5797 2391

Website: www.gvhealth.org.au
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